






  

The Sierra Schools 
Foundation www.sierraschoolsfoundation.org 
 

PO BOX 336 Sierraville, CA, 96126 Phone: 530-414-3655, E-Mail: meganmeschery@gmail.com 

 
Past, Present and Future: A brief update on our impact over 
the past 5 years, current grants and our promising future. 

Taking Stock 
The Sierra Schools Foundation has made great strides since its creation in 2011 to bring 
educational equity to the students of Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District not only in the form 
of enhancement projects and programs, but also in the creation of solid new curricula. We have 
seen small projects grow into exciting programming that parents and students look forward to 
each year. 

These projects and programs are not only exciting for students, teachers and parents, but they 
connect directly with the learning goals of the Common Core Standards and the Next Generation 
Science Standards. These standards are guiding 21st Century education and we are proud to put 
our funds towards strong project and inquiry-based learning. 

Some of those programs include: The Ceramics Program, Grades 7-12; The Choral Class, Grades 
9-12; The Learning Garden Program, Grades K-12; The Filmmaking and Coding Program, Grades 
8-12; Mobile STEM Labs, Grades K-8 and The Spring Musical Project, Grades 7-12.  

The longevity of these programs is a direct result of the investments made by both the Sierra 
Schools Foundation and the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District. It’s a prime example of how 
working together exponentially benefits the students of Sierra and Plumas Counties. 

Below you will see the investments made by Sierra Schools Foundation. You can see how much 
impact we have made with our Roots and Boots Initiative through a fiscal lens:  

 

TOTAL GRANTS:
$164,152

ROOTS:                   
$49,928

YEARLY TOTALS

School Year 2016/17
$14,629

School Year 2015/16        
$32,265

School Year 2014/15 
$46,695

School Year 2013/14 
$40,433

School Year 2012/13 
$30,130

BOOTS:
$114,224



  

The Sierra Schools 
Foundation www.sierraschoolsfoundation.org 

 

PO BOX 336, Sierraville, CA, 96126  P hone: 530-414-3655, E-Mail: meganmeschery@gmail.com  

Current Awarded Grants for Winter 2016 

 

Moving Forward  
As we head into 2017, with almost six years of making such a positive educational difference in 
the lives of so many young people in Sierra and Plumas Counties, we are looking to the future and 
the many possibilities to make an even greater impact. However, in order to make real sustainable 
change we must begin to think bigger and imagine how we can move our schools from good to 
great - to realize educational programming that draws neighboring children to our schools, 
invigorates a sense of passion for learning, and instills pride in our residents around our public 
schools.  

Recently, the Sierra Schools Foundation received a generous donation from an anonymous donor 
and we are currently discussing as a board how to invest the money to best benefit our schools, 
teachers and students.  We are reaching out to partners and key stakeholders for feedback. 
Please stay tuned for more details and we hope to connect with you to discuss this amazing 
opportunity for our schools!  

Of course, if you have any questions, feel free to contact us at 530-414-3655 or 
meganmeschery@gmail.com. 

The following is a list of the projects and programs 
completely or partially in the Roots focus area: 
 
Downieville School, Grades K-12 – Fully 
funded $2,000 for the Downieville Garden’s Art-
Science Fusion Project. Maire McDermid, Teacher 
 
Loyalton High School, Grades 9-12 – Fully 
funded $1,433.25 for Northern California Geology 
Field Trip to Lassen Volcanic National Park and 
surrounding areas. Jason Adams, Teacher. 
 
Loyalton Elementary School, Grade 4 – Fully 
funded $1,500 plus up to $1,000 for transportation 
costs for the Lava Beds National Monument 2-day 
field trip. Joanna Haug, Teacher. 
 
Loyalton High School, Grades 9-12 – Fully 
funded $863 for needed equipment and tools in 
the Agricultural Classrooms. Cali Griffin, Teacher. 
 
 

The following is a list of the projects and programs 
completely or partially funded in the Boots focus area: 
 
Downieville & Loyalton Elementary Schools, Grades K-6 – 
Fully funded $4,000 for the Mobile STEM Labs in the 
Classroom Project. Andrea Ceresola, Principal. 
 
Downieville School, Grades 4 -12 – Fully 
funded $2,250 to provide voice, dance and music 
instruction and support for the 2017 Spring Musical.  
Lynn Fillo, Teacher. 
 
Loyalton High School, Grades 7-12 – Fully 
funded $358.00 for a digital microscope with built-in WiFi 
sharing capability to be used for multiple classes.  
Jason Adams, Teacher. 
 
Loyalton Elementary School, Grades K-1 – Fully 
funded $760.00 for the Introducing STEM to the Youngest 
Years Project. Ann Fisher, Teacher. 
 
Loyalton Elementary School, Grade 3 – Fully 
funded $465 for University of Nevada Reno Planetarium 
Field Trip. Erin Folchi, Teacher. 
 







SCOE  
 Minutes 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEEETING OF THE  

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

December 13, 2016 

Downieville School, 130 School St., Downieville, CA 95936 

ANNUAL ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING following the  

Oath of Office and Organizational Meeting 

 

6 pm - Regular Session 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

 

 President Hall called the meeting to order at 6:06 pm. 

 

B. ROLL CALL 

 

 PRESENT: Ms.  Patty Hall, President   

   Mr.  Mike Moore, Vice President  

    Mr.  Allen Wright, Clerk 

   Ms.  Sharon Dryden, Member 

 

 ABSENT:     Mr.  Tim Driscoll, Member  

 

 VACANT:     None 

     

C. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA   

 DRYDEN/MOORE  

 
D. FLAG SALUTE 

 

E. RECESS TO THE SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT GOVERNING 

BOARD MEETING 

 

F. RECONVENE at 6:31 pm 

 

ANNUAL ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 

BOARD ORGANIZATION 

  

1. Election of Officers for 2017 

 

a. President  

 WRIGHT nominated DRYDEN.  Hall seconded. 

 4/0 

 1 Absent 

 

b. Vice-President  

 DRYDEN nominated WRIGHT.  HALL seconded. 

 4/0 

 1 Absent 

  

c. Clerk  

 HALL nominated DRISCOLL.  DRYDEN seconded. 

    4/0 

  1 Absent 



Sierra County Board of Education  

Regular Meeting Minutes 

December 13, 2016 

 

 

SCOE 

Minutes 

2 

2. President DRYDEN appointed Dr. Merrill Grant as Secretary of the Board and directed him to 

inform the appropriate agencies of the Sierra County Board of Education newly appointed 

officers.  

 

3. Approval of Sierra County Board of Education Meeting Calendar for 2017 

  MOORE/HALL 

  4/0 

  1 absent 

 

G. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 

1. Superintendent’s Report 

a. Letter of Resignation from Rose Asquith, Business Manager  

A search will begin for her replacement in January. 

b. Revised Job Description No. 214, Business Manager 

DRYDEN asked that the word ‘Possess’ be changed to ‘Prefer’.  

MOORE asked that this description be placed on the Board Meeting in January for 

approval. 

c. A position of Site Tech for District Office funded by the county will be filled by 

Adrienne Garza.  

d. TIPPS-MAPP Update- The board was presented with a flyer containing information 

for the April training of instructors for foster parent classes. 

e. The FIT Inspections identified many improvements/repairs.  Deferment money can be 

used to support the facilities’ repairs. 

 

2. Business Report 

a. Account Object Summary-Balances through 11/30/16 

b. The Sierra County Office of Education will be closed for 

 Winter Break from December 23, 2016, through January 2, 2017. 

 

3. Staff Reports (5 minutes) 

Cali Griffin asked the board to support the National FFA Convention Indianapolis, IN & 

Washington DC .  Jane Roberti spoke in support of the convention and the ag program.  

 

4. SPTA Report (5 minutes) 

 

5. Board Members’ Report (5 minutes) 

 

6. Public Comment  

a. Current location –  

b. Videoconference location:  Jane Roberti spoke on behalf of the FFA advisory 

committee. She articulated the importance of students attending the national 

convention including the opportunity to meet other people throughout the state and 

experiences of personal growth.  She stressed that fundraising is crucial.   

c. Sierra Schools Foundation’s most recent newsletter will be mailed soon.  The most 

recent grant cycle closed on Monday with ten compelling applications for review.  

  



Sierra County Board of Education  

Regular Meeting Minutes 

December 13, 2016 

 

 

SCOE 

Minutes 

3 

H. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

1. Approval of minutes of the Regular Board meeting held November 8, 2016 

2. Approval of Board Report – Checks Dated 11/01/2016 through 11/30/16 

MOORE/HALL 

4/0 

1 Absent  

 

I. ACTION ITEMS 

 

1. New Business 

 

1617-55 Adoption of Resolution No. 16-002, Conflict of Interest 

MOORE/HALL 

TRUSTEE DRISCOLL  ABSENT 

TRUSTEE DRYDEN  AYE 

TRUSTEE HALL  AYE 

TRUSTEE MOORE  AYE 

TRUSTEE WRIGHT  AYE 

4/0  

1 absent 

 

1617-56 Adoption of 2016-2017 First Interim Actuals and Criteria & Standards Report as of 

October 31, 2016 

Ms. Asquith stated that there are not a lot of changes and asked the Board for questions.  

MOORE/HALL 

4/0 

1 Absent  

 

1617-57 Approval of California Energy Commission Proposition 39 Program Energy Expenditure 

Plan Report (SmartWatt) 

WRIGHT/HALL 

4/0 

1 Absent 

 

1617-58 First Reading, Board Bylaw 9320, Meetings and Notice, revision 

DRYDEN stated that the commitment of one meeting a month in person is practicable and 

that it benefits the board to be at school sites. 

Grant explained that it would be on an ‘as needed’ basis for times of stormy weather, road 

closures, and special meetings that are rudimentary.  

MOORE believes it’s important that the board is present in the communities and does not 

see a need for it.  

HALL agrees that for special board meetings and/or emergency situations it makes sense 

to be able to have videoconferencing as a backup plan.  She stated that the impact of 

physical presence during discussions on county/district matters can reflect in the final 

vote.  

A member of the public whose opinion is highly valued opined that it is a waste to drive 

over an hour for a simple meeting and that there should be an option.  

  



Sierra County Board of Education  

Regular Meeting Minutes 

December 13, 2016 

 

 

SCOE 

Minutes 

4 

BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS  

 

WRIGHT motioned to approve items 1617-59 through and including 1617-64.  MOORE 

seconded. 

4/0 

1 Absent 

 

1617-59 Approval of Board Policy 3541.2, Transportation for Students with Disabilities, revision 

 

1617-60 Approval of Administrative Regulation 4217.11, PreRetirement Part-Time Employment 

 

1617-61 Approval of Administrative Regulation 5125.3, Challenging Student Records, revision 

 

1617-62 Approval of Administrative Regulation 6143, Courses of Study, revision 

 

1617-63 Approval of Board Policy, Administrative Regulation and Exhibit (1), (2) 6173, Education 

for Homeless Children, revision 

 

1617-64 Approval of Board Bylaw, Exhibit 9323.2, Actions by the Board, revision 

 

J. ADVANCED PLANNING 

 

 1.   Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on January 10, 2017, at Sierra County Office of 

Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Loyalton, CA 96118, beginning with Closed Session, as 

needed, at 5 pm and the Regular Board Meeting at 6:00 pm 

 

2.   Suggested Agenda Items   

a. Business Manager Job Description revision 

b. Board Bylaw 9320 regarding videoconferencing 

c. SMART Watt plan 

d. Field Trip Request for AG 

 

K. ADJOURN 

 

HALL/MOORE 

4/0 

1 Absent 

 

The meeting adjourned at 6:57 pm. 

 

 

 

 

 ______________________________  _______________________________  

 Tim Driscoll, Clerk      Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 

        Secretary of the Board of Education 







Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Bylaw 
Meetings And Notice 
 
BB 9320  
 
*--- EXCERPT ---* 
 
Teleconferencing 
 
A teleconference is a meeting of the Board linking various locations by electronic means through audio and/or video for 
the benefit of the public and the legislative body of a local agency in connection with any meeting or proceeding 
authorized by law. 
 
Regular Meetings 
 
The Board considers its responsibility to meet, discuss and make decisions on behalf of and for the county/district a high 
priority and that physical presence at all meetings is beneficial to the outcome. 
 
 Members of the Governing Board shall be allowed to participate from the videoconferenced  
location when all of the following conditions apply:   
 

1.  Circumstances have occurred beyond the board member’s control 
 

2. The board president or designee confirms that circumstances are beyond the member’s control.  When both Sierra 
County Board of Education and Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board are affected, both 
presidents must concur. 

  
A board member may attend no more than two regular meetings per calendar year via videoconference. If extenuating 
circumstances arise (severe illness, disability, etc.), this number may be increased by a unanimous vote of the board. 
 
Special or Emergency Meetings 
 
A board member may attend a special board meeting via videoconference when  

1. circumstances have occurred beyond the board member’s control,  
2. the meeting is purported to last less than 1 hour 
3. the board member has the unanimous agreement of the board. 

 
A board member may attend any emergency board meeting via videoconference. 
 
All teleconference locations shall be accessible to the public.  Agendas shall be posted at all teleconference locations and 
shall identify all teleconference locations and access codes.   Additional teleconference locations may be provided to the 
public.  (Government Code 54953) 
 
All teleconferenced meetings shall be conducted in a manner that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the 
parties or the public appearing before the Board, including the right of the public to address the Board directly at each 
teleconference location.  A quorum is required to participate from locations within the boundaries over which the board 
has jurisdiction. All votes in a teleconferenced meeting must be by rollcall. (Government Code 54953) 
 
All Board policies, administrative regulations, and bylaws shall apply equally to meetings that are teleconferenced.  The 
Superintendent or designee shall facilitate public participation in the meeting at each teleconference location. 
 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION                                             ORGANIZATION  
  NO. 214 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

BUSINESS MANAGER 

POSITION SUMMARY: 

Under the direction of the County and District Superintendent, serves as Business Manager 
and chief business official of Sierra County Office of Education (SCOE) and the Sierra-
Plumas Joint Unified School District (S-PJUSD). The Business Manager plans, organizes, 
and manages the SCOE and S-PJUSD internal fiscal operations including the analysis, 
development and implementation of the budgets for both entities.  In this capacity, the 
Business Manager performs complex and technical duties related to business services, 
works to safeguard public funds, ensures the most effective use of revenue to support and 
improve the educational programs, responsible for collection and reporting of financial data, 
and establishes and maintains effective internal accounting procedures. The person in this 
management position works in a typical office setting and serves as the office manager. 

PRINCIPLE RESPONSIBILITIES: 

In conformance with the philosophy, goals, and objectives of the SCOE and S-PJUSD, 
business management services are provided to promote the fiscally sound operations 
of the office.  To accomplish these goals and objectives, the Business Manager will, in 
consultation with the Superintendent: 

 Oversee all aspects of developing, monitoring, and reporting the SCOE and          
S-PJUSD budgets, and make recommendations to the Superintendent and 
Board 

 Work cooperatively with other administrative staff in the development and 
control of their respective budgets 

 Analyze long range planning as it relates to income, expenditures, program 
costs, facilities, and general budgeting considerations 

 Responsible for proper accounting of all funds and accounts 
 Prepare and compile financial statements and budget information and present to 

Superintendent and Board 
 Provide SCOE and S-PJUSD leadership team the expenditure details for the 

Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) goals and actions 
 Train, coordinate and assist the business office personnel in the preparation and 

submission of local, county, state, and federal reports and correspondence 
 Develop internal audit procedures and prepare audit records in cooperation with 

the independent auditors of the SCOE and S-PJUSD; ensure compliance with 
federal and state regulations on proper accounting methods, practices and 
applicable fiscal services management 

 Supervise the use of requisitions and purchase orders to ensure accountability 
of expenditures 

 Review and approve purchase orders for issuance 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION                                             ORGANIZATION  
  NO. 214 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 Audit process and monitor account receivables; audit payments for all invoices 
 Audit payroll and payroll warrants 
 Maintain files for legal documents, audits, reports, and permanent property 

records  
 Maintain oversight of the inventory maintenance of all fixed assets 
 Facilitate the construction bid process; ensure facility projects are managed 

from financing to completion; maintain records, policies, and contracts of 
property and building facilities 

 Supervise deferred maintenance accounting 
 Manage statistical files and charts of business services 
 Train and supervise business office staff  
 Audit cash in County Treasurer funds 
 Review average daily attendance reports 
 Research and/or assist with grant writing applications 
 Oversee Wellness Plan compliance 
 Review and edit monthly board of education and governing board agenda and 

minutes 
 Coordinate with Technology Director the acquisition of computers, software, 

system maintenance and the implementation of systems 
 Serve as office manager to plan, organize, assign, review, direct, and evaluate 

the work of the support staff  
 Coordinate legal claims and manage litigation files 
 Respond to policy management questions as directed by the District and/or 

County Superintendent 
 Close year-end books 
 Attend workshops and conferences related to business operations as approved 

by the Superintendent 
 Maintain oversight of the recruitment, selection and hiring process of all 

employees 
 Serve as SCOE and S-PJUSD representative/delegate on varies executive 

boards and/or committees as assigned by Superintendent 
 Provide informational documents to support the Superintendent and SCOE/S-

PJUSD team for employee negotiations  
 Attend governing board, school, and community meetings as needed or required 
 Other duties as delegated by the Superintendent 

QUALIFICATIONS: 

A bachelor’s degree in accounting, public or business administration, economics or 

related field. At least five years increasingly responsible experience in professional 
budgeting, accounting, auditing, or school business administration. The education 
requirement can be fulfilled with a combination of experience and college course 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION                                             ORGANIZATION  
  NO. 214 

Page 3 of 3 
 

work in related subject areas that would lead to the required knowledge, skills and 
abilities required by the position. Desire Chief Business Official Certification and 
Certified Public Accountant (CPA) designation. 

 
 Possess a thorough in-depth knowledge of financial planning and 

governmental budgeting 
 Ability to interpret a variety of laws, policies, regulations, procedures, 

Education Code, Government Code, bargaining agreements, and state and 
federal regulations  

 Possess a thorough knowledge of the business financial operating system 
 Knowledge of government purchasing procedures, bidding process, 

construction/modernization/maintenance project process and California 
school construction laws, is preferred  

 Ability to work independently and exercise a high degree of initiative and 
independent judgment  

 Ability to compose, prepare, and edit all types of communications  
 Ability to read and write in the English language 
 Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with all 

personnel and public contacts during the course of business 
 Ability and skill to supervise subordinate staff  
 Ability to plan, organize, and maintain the office as an efficient operation 

and as a support agency to improve the educational programs of the SCOE 
and S-PJUSD 

 Operate office equipment including facsimile, personal computer, 
10-key adding machine, photocopier, shredder and mail machine 

PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS: 

 This type of work involves sitting most of the time but may include physical 
abilities such as standing and walking; sitting/squatting, lifting/carrying, 
reaching/handling, bending/twisting, talking/hearing, near and far visual 
acuity/depth perception, manual dexterity to operate office equipment and 
computer.  

 Moderate lifting; may assist with lifting 20-30 pounds 

First Reading: April 8, 2003; Adopt June 10, 2003 

Revision First Reading: December 13, 2016; Adoption: January 10, 2017 

 

 

z:job description/SCOE Business Manager 



2016 SARC Input Form (Sierra County Office of Education) 12/20/16

2016 SARC Input Form

THIS IS NOT THE FULL SARC TEMPLATE.

Please review and update each section of this template for completeness and accuracy.  This template is 
provided as a tool to update your SARC and contains only a list of required reporting components that our team 
isn’t able to retrieve from public sources (i.e., Dataquest).  DTS will import publically available data as it becomes 
available.

This template provides clear, concise guidance in each section to assist you through the update process.  You 
can also click on the section title for any of the sections to review detailed guidance from CDE regarding the 
reporting requirements for the section being reviewed/updated.  A full version of CDE’s data elements 
document can be downloaded by clicking here.

A list of answers to frequently asked questions can be reviewed by clicking here.  If, after reading the provided 
guidance and referring to the frequently asked questions documentation, you find you still need assistance, 
please feel free to contact the DTS Support Team by clicking here.

School Contact Information
Please review and update the information below as needed.  This section should include current School 
Contact Information for your school.
School Information
School Name Sierra County Office of Education
Street--- 109 Beckwith Street
City, State, Zip Loyalton, CA  96118
Phone Number 530-993-1660
Principal-------- Dr. Merrill M. Grant
E-mail Address mgrant@spjusd.org
School Website sierracountyofficeofeducation.org
CDS Code-------- 46104620119289

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/16SARC/InputFormDataElements/sarcdef.pdf
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/16SARC/FAQs.pdf
mailto:sarchelp@doc-tracking.com?subject=SARC%2520Questions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/16SARC/InputFormDataElements/School%2520Contact%2520Information.pdf


2016 SARC Input Form (Sierra County Office of Education) 12/20/16

District Contact Information
Please review and update the information below as needed.  This section should include current District 
Contact Information for your district.
District Information
District Name Sierra County Office of Education
Street 109 Beckwith Street
City, State, Zip Loyalton, CA 96118
Phone Number 530-993-1660
Superintendent Dr. Merrill M. Grant
Web Site-------- www.sierracountyofficeofeducation.org
E-mail Address mgrant@spjusd.org

School Description and Mission Statement (Most Recent Year)
Please review and update the information below as needed.  This section should include information about 
your school, its programs and its goals.  This section should be kept to 2-3 paragraphs.

Our mission is to provide a primary education with a goal of all children achieving literacy.  We provide 
children with the tools to encourage their total development, enhance their self-esteem and realize their 
potential in a safe, secure environment.

Sierra County Office of Education Special Education serves Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District students.  
Please see individual Sierra-Plumas school sites' School Accountability Report Card for more detail.

Sierra  County Office of Education students include students who attend school in the State of Nevada and are 
reported as out-of-state students.  Therefore, no data is reflected for those students in this report.

Sierra County student population is fewer than 10, therefore no data is reflected for those students in this 
report. Students attending Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District.are listed under the enrollment of their 
respective schools.

Opportunities for Parental Involvement (Most Recent Year)
Please review and update the information below as needed.  This section should include information on how 
parents can become involved in school activities, including contact information pertaining to organized 
opportunities for parent involvement.  This section should be kept to 1-2 paragraphs.

Sierra County Office of Education welcomes parental involvement.  This process is altered each year in 
accordance with student attendance, parent schedules and district school parent involvement activities. 
Parents are most involved with their children at their individual sites.

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/16SARC/InputFormDataElements/District%2520Contact%2520Information.pdf
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/16SARC/InputFormDataElements/School%2520Description%2520and%2520Mission%2520Statement.pdf
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/16SARC/InputFormDataElements/Opportunities%2520for%2520Parental%2520Involvement.pdf


2016 SARC Input Form (Sierra County Office of Education) 12/20/16

School Safety Plan (Most Recent Year)
Please review and update the information below as needed.  This section should include information about 
your school’s comprehensive safety plan, including the dates on which the safety plan was last reviewed, 
updated, and discussed with faculty; as well as a brief description of the key elements of the plan (please do 
not paste your entire safety plan in this field).    This section should be kept to 1-2 paragraphs.

Sierra County Office of Education is situated in a small rural town.  Staff members remain vigilant during 
school breaks and before and after school each day.  Being very small and intimate, the staff is very familiar 
with all of the parents, guardians and other family members of the children.  The school building is situated 
securely between Loyalton Elementary School and the District Office Complex. All visitors are asked to check in 
at the school office, and regular school volunteers are screened.   Our Safety Plan is based on the National 
Emergency Management System and is reviewed by the Board of Education annually. The plan covers 
emergency action procedures and general crisis management for potential situations in the classroom, outside 
the building and while on school buses.  The School Safety Plan is reviewed annually by the administrators and 
the Board of Education.   The school runs practice safety drills (fire, earthquake, intruder) several times a year 
on a surprise basis to monitor the effectiveness of each drill. This includes a week-long safety training for all 
staff and students.

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements (Most Recent Year)
Please review and update the information below as needed.  This section should include information from the 
most recent Facility Inspection Tool (FIT) data (or equivalent), including:

• Description of the safety, cleanliness, and adequacy of the school facility
• Description of any planned or recently completed facility improvements
• The year and month in which the data were collected
• Description of any needed maintenance to ensure good repair

You can click here to submit your school’s most recent FIT tool in MS Excel format.  Please do not submit your 
FIT tool in any format other than MS Excel.

Year and month of the most recent FIT report: October 2016

This section should be kept to 1-2 paragraphs.

To determine the condition of our facilities, our district performs an annual inspection using the Facilities 
Inspection Tool, which is issued by the Office of Public School Construction.
Base on that survey, we've answered the questions you see on this report. Please note that the information 
reflects the condition of our building as of the date of the report.  Since that time, those conditions may have 
changed.

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/16SARC/InputFormDataElements/School%2520Safety%2520Plan.pdf
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/16SARC/InputFormDataElements/School%2520Facility%2520Conditions%2520and%2520Planned%2520Improvements.pdf
mailto:sarchelp@doc-tracking.com?subject=MS%2520Excel%2520FIT%2520Report%2520for%2520Upload%2520to%2520DTS


2016 SARC Input Form (Sierra County Office of Education) 12/20/16

School Facility Good Repair Status (Most Recent Year)
Please review and update the information below as needed.  This section should include information from the 
most recent Facility Inspection Tool (FIT) data (or equivalent), including:

• Determination of repair status for systems listed
• Description of any needed maintenance to ensure good repair
• The Overall Rating (bottom row)

Please ensure that this section correlates accurately to the most recent inspection/FIT report 
for your school.

Repair Status
(the marks should match 

your most recent inspection)System Inspected

Good Fair Poor

Repair Needed and
Action Taken or Planned

Systems:
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, 
Sewer 

X     

Interior:
Interior Surfaces

X     

Cleanliness:
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/ 
Vermin Infestation

X     

Electrical:
Electrical

X     

Restrooms/Fountains:
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains

X     

Safety:
Fire Safety, Hazardous 
Materials

X     

Structural:
Structural Damage, Roofs

    X Roof bellows in high winds.

External:
Playground/School Grounds, 
Windows/ 
Doors/Gates/Fences

X     

Repair Status
(the marks should match your most recent inspection)System Inspected

Exemplary Good Fair Poor

Overall Rating   X     

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/16SARC/InputFormDataElements/School%2520Facility%2520Good%2520Repair%2520Status.pdf


2016 SARC Input Form (Sierra County Office of Education) 12/20/16

Teacher Credentials
Please review and update the information below as needed.  This section should include the number of 
teachers that fall into each category listed for the year indicated.  As this template is thoroughly reviewed 
each year, please note that the years listed, 14-15, 15-16 and 16-17, are correct.

School District
Teachers at this School

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2016-17

With Full Credential-------- 2 2 3 3

Without Full Credential
Without a full credential (includes LEA and 
university internships, pre-internships, 
emergency or other permits, and waivers)

0 0 0 0

Teaching Outside Subject Area of 
Competence
CDE does not collect data on the number of 
teachers teaching outside their subject area of 
competence (with full credential). Teaching 
outside subject area data should be available 
in the LEA’s personnel office. In most 
instances, teaching outside subject area is a 
subset of total teacher misassignments (see 
data definition for Teacher Misassignments).

0 0 0 0

Teacher Misassignments and Vacant Teacher Positions
Please review and update the information below as needed.  This section should include the number of 
teachers that fall into each category listed for the year indicated.  As this template is thoroughly reviewed 
each year, please note that the years listed, 14-15, 15-16 and 16-17, are correct.

Indicator 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17
Misassignments of Teachers of English 
Learners
‘Misassignments’ refers to the number of positions 
filled by teachers who lack legal authorization to teach 
that grade level, subject area, student group, etc.

0 0 0

Total Teacher Misassignments
‘Misassignments’ refers to the number of positions 
filled by teachers who lack legal authorization to teach 
that grade level, subject area, student group, etc.

0 0 0

Vacant Teacher Positions
‘Vacant Teacher Positions’ refer to positions not filled 
by a single designated teacher assigned to teach the 
entire course at the beginning of the school year or 
semester.

0 0 0

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/16SARC/InputFormDataElements/Teacher%2520Credentials.pdf
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/16SARC/InputFormDataElements/Teacher%2520Misassignments%2520and%2520Vacant%2520Teacher%2520Positions.pdf


2016 SARC Input Form (Sierra County Office of Education) 12/20/16

Academic Counselors and Other Support Staff (School Year 2015-16)
The data that is currently displayed in this table was carried over from last year’s SARC.  Please update the FTE 
for each category as needed.  This section should include the number of staff, full time equivalent (FTE), 
employed at your school that fall into the categories listed.

One Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full-time; one FTE could also represent two 
staff members who each work 50% of full-time.

As this template is thoroughly reviewed each year, please note that the year listed, 15-16, is correct.

Title
Number of FTE

Assigned to 
School

Average Number of Students
per Academic Counselor

Academic Counselor---- 0 0
Counselor (Social/Behavioral or Career Development) 0 ♦

Library Media Teacher (Librarian)---- 0 ♦

Library Media Services Staff (paraprofessional) 0 ♦

Psychologist---- .5 ♦

Social Worker---- 0 ♦

Nurse---- 1.0 ♦

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist---- 1.0 ♦

Resource Specialist (non-teaching)---- 0 ♦

Other---- .5 ♦
♦ means data is not required.  The fields are intentionally not provided.

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/16SARC/InputFormDataElements/Academic%2520Counselors%2520and%2520Other%2520Support%2520Staff.pdf


2016 SARC Input Form (Sierra County Office of Education) 12/20/16

Textbooks and Instructional Materials (Most Recent Year)
This section describes 1) whether the textbooks and instructional materials used at the school are from the 
most recent adoption, 2) whether there are sufficient textbooks and instruction materials for each student 3) 
and information about the school’s use of any supplemental curriculum or non-adopted textbooks or 
instructional materials.

List all textbooks and instructional materials used in the school in core subjects (reading/language arts, math, 
science, and history-social science), including:

• Year they were adopted
• Whether they were selected from the most recent list of standards-based materials adopted by the State 

Board of Education (SBE) or local governing board
• Percent of students who lack their own assigned textbooks and/or instructional materials*
• For kindergarten through grade 8 (K-8), include any supplemental curriculum adopted by local governing 

board

If an insufficiency exists, the description must identify the percent of students who lack sufficient textbooks 
and instructional materials. Be sure to use the most recent available data collected by the LEA and note the 
year and month in which the data were collected.

Please ensure that this section correlates accurately to most recent adoption of textbooks 
for your LEA.

Year and month in which data were collected: N/A

This section should be kept to 1-2 paragraphs.

Students use textbooks issued by their school of enrollment.  See individual school site sections on Textbooks.

Core Curriculum Area Textbooks and Instructional Materials/
Year of Adoption

From
Most 

Recent
Adoption?

Percent of 
Students

Lacking Own
Assigned Copy

Reading/Language Arts---
-

n/a

Mathematics---- n/a
Science---- n/a
History-Social Science---- n/a
Foreign Language---- n/a
Health---- n/a
Visual and Performing 
Arts----

n/a

Science Laboratory 
Equipment
(grades 9-12 schools only)

n/a

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/16SARC/InputFormDataElements/Textbooks%2520and%2520Instructional%2520Materials.pdf


2016 SARC Input Form (Sierra County Office of Education) 12/20/16

Expenditures per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries (Fiscal Year 2014-15)
The fields that are, highlighted yellow, are populated for you with data provided by CDE (as available).
Percent differences, highlighted light-blue, are calculated by this form.  
The remaining data was copied over form last year’s SARC and should be reviewed/updated, with data from FY 
14-15, as needed.

The most recent data available from CDE is for fiscal year 2014-15.  For comparison purposes, data for the 
same fiscal year is requested from the school.

As this template is thoroughly reviewed each year, please note that the year listed, fiscal year 14-15, is correct.

Expenditures Per Pupil

Level
Total

Supplemental/
Restricted 

Sources

Basic/
Unrestricted 

Sources

Average
Teacher
Salary

School Site---- n/a n/a n/a n/a
District---- ♦ ♦ n/a $58,159
Percent Difference: School Site and 
District

♦ ♦ n/a n/a

State---- ♦ ♦ $9,867 $72,621
Percent Difference: School Site and 
State

♦ ♦ n/a n/a

♦ means data is not required.  The fields are intentionally not provided.

Supplemental/Restricted expenditures come from money whose use is controlled by law or by a donor. 
Money that is designated for specific purposes by the district or governing board is not considered restricted.

Basic/Unrestricted expenditures are from money whose use, except for general guidelines, is not controlled 
by law or by a donor.

Types of Services Funded (Fiscal Year 2015-16)
Please review and update the information below as needed.  This section should include specific information 
about the types of programs and services available at the school that support and assists students. For 
example, this narrative may include information about supplemental educational services related to the 
school’s federal Program Improvement (PI) status.

As this template is thoroughly reviewed each year, please note that the year listed, fiscal year 15-16, is correct.

Sierra County Office of Education Special Education serves Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District students.  
Please see Sierra-Plumas school sites School Accountability Report Card for more detail.

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/16SARC/InputFormDataElements/Expenditures%2520per%2520Pupil%2520and%2520School%2520Site%2520Teacher%2520Salaries.pdf
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/16SARC/InputFormDataElements/Types%2520of%2520Services%2520Funded.pdf


2016 SARC Input Form (Sierra County Office of Education) 12/20/16

Professional Development (Most Recent Three Years)
Please review and update the information below as needed.  This section should include the number of days 
provided for professional development and continuous professional growth in the most recent three year 
period. Questions that may also be answered include:

• What are the primary/major areas of focus for staff development and specifically how were they selected? 
For example, were student achievement data used to determine the need for professional development in 
reading instruction?

• What are the methods by which professional development is delivered (e.g., after school workshops, 
conference attendance, individual mentoring, etc.)?

• How are teachers supported during implementation (e.g., through in-class coaching, teacher-principal 
meetings, student performance data reporting, etc.)?

In conjunction with Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District, a Professional Learning Community (PLC) was 
implemented and meets approximately 10 afternoons throughout the school year.  The primary focus is the 
utilization of technology in order to increase student achievement.  

School Completion and Postsecondary Preparation

This section applies to schools serving grades 9-12 only.  
If your school does not serve grades 9-12, simply skip and leave this section blank.

It will not be included in the full SARC.

Career Technical Education Programs (School Year 2015-16)
Please review and update the information below as needed.  This section should include information about 
Career Technical Education (CTE) programs at your school including:

• Programs and classes offered that are specifically focused on career preparation and or preparation for 
work

• How these programs and classes are integrated with academic courses and how they support academic 
achievement

• How the school addresses the needs of all students in career preparation and/or preparation for work, 
including needs unique to defined special populations of students

• The measurable outcomes of these programs and classes, and how they are evaluated
• State the primary representative of the district’s CTE advisory committee and the industries represented 

on the committee

As this template is thoroughly reviewed each year, please note that the year listed, 15-16, is correct.  This 
section should be kept to 1-2 paragraphs.

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/16SARC/InputFormDataElements/Professional%2520Development.pdf
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/16SARC/InputFormDataElements/Career%2520Technical%2520Education%2520Programs.pdf


2016 SARC Input Form (Sierra County Office of Education) 12/20/16

Career Technical Education Participation (School Year 2015-16)
Please review and update the information below as needed.  This section should include information about 
the level of participation in Career Technical Education (CTE) programs at your school.  Numbers populated 
were carried over from last year’s SARC.

As this template is thoroughly reviewed each year, please note that the year listed, 15-16, is correct.

Measure CTE Program
Participation

Number of pupils participating in CTE 0
% of pupils completing a CTE program and earning a high school diploma
The number of pupils that completed a CTE program and graduated ÷ total number of pupils enrolled in a CTE 
program

0

% of CTE courses sequenced/articulated between the school/institutions of postsecondary 
education
The number of CTE courses that are sequenced or articulated ÷ total number of CTE courses offered at the 
school

0

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/16SARC/InputFormDataElements/Career%2520Technical%2520Education%2520Participation.pdf


1 
 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
 
Community Relations AR 1340(a) 
 
ACCESS TO DISTRICT RECORDS 
 
Definitions 
 
Public records include any writing containing information relating to the conduct of the district's 
business prepared, owned, used, or retained by the district regardless of physical form or 
characteristics.  (Government Code 6252) 
 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
(cf. 9012 - Board Member Electronic Communications) 
 
Writing means any handwriting, typewriting, printing, photostating, photographing, 
photocopying, transmitting by electronic mail or facsimile, and every other means of recording 
upon any tangible thing any form of communication or representation, including letters, words, 
pictures, sounds, or symbols or combinations thereof, and any record thereby created, regardless 
of the manner in which the record has been stored.  (Government Code 6252) 
 
Member of the public means any person, except a member, agent, officer, or employee of the 
district or a federal, state, or other local agency acting within the scope of his/her membership, 
agency, office, or employment.  (Government Code 6252) 
 
Public Records 
 
Public records to which members of the public shall have access include, but are not limited to: 
 
1. Proposed and approved district budgets and annual audits (Education Code 41020, 42103) 
 
(cf. 3100 - Budget) 
(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability) 
 
2. Statistical compilations 
 
3. Reports and memoranda 
 
4. Notices and bulletins 
 
5. Minutes of public meetings  (Education Code 35145) 
 
(cf. 9324 - Minutes and Recordings) 
 
6. Meeting agendas  (Government Code 54957.5) 



2 
 

 
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 
 
7. Official communications between the district and other government agencies 
 
8. School-based program plans  (Education Code 52850) 
 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
(cf. 0420.1 - School-Based Program Coordination) 
 
9. Information and data relevant to the evaluation and modification of district plans 
 
(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
(cf. 0520.2 - Title I Program Improvement Schools) 
(cf. 0520.3 - Title I Program Improvement Districts) 
 
10. Initial proposals of exclusive employee representatives and of the district  (Government 

Code 3547) 
 
(cf. 4143.1/4243.1 - Public Notice - Personnel Negotiations) 
 
11. Records pertaining to claims and litigation against the district which have been 

adjudicated or settled Claims filed against the district and records pertaining to pending 
litigation (Government Code 6254, 6254.25; Fairley v. Superior Court; 71 
Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 235 (1988)) 

 
(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District) 
 
12. Statements of economic interests required by the Conflict of Interest Code  (Government 

Code 81008) 
 
(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest) 
 
13. Documents containing names, salaries, and pension benefits of district employees 
 
1314. Employment contracts and settlement agreements  (Government Code 53262) 
 
(cf. 2121 - Superintendent's Contract) 
(cf. 4117.5/4217.5/4317.5 - Termination Agreements) 
(cf. 4141/4241 - Collective Bargaining Agreement) 
 
1415. Instructional materials including, but not limited to, textbooks (Education Code 49091.10 

64 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 186 (1981)) 
 
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 
(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials) 
 



3 
 

Governing Board members shall have the ability to access public records permitted by law in the 
administration of their duties or open to inspection by members of the public.  (Government Code 
6252.5Access to public records of the district shall be granted to Governing Board members 
on the same basis as any other member of the public. When Board members are authorized 
to access public records in the administration of their duties, the Superintendent or designee 
shall not discriminate among any of the Board members as to which record, or portion of 
the record, will be made available, or when it will be made available.  (Government Code 
6252.5, 6252.7) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that any public record containing personal 
information is redacted to ensure that such informationWhen disclosing to a member of the 
public any record that contains personal information, including, but not limited to, an 
employee's home address , home telephone number, or social security number, personal cell 
phone number, or birth date, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that such personal 
information is redacted from that record is not disclosed to the public. (Government Code 
6254.29, 6254.3) 
 
Confidential Public Records 
 
Records to which the members of the public shall not have access include, but are not limited to: 
 
1. Preliminary drafts, notes, interagency or intradistrict memoranda whichthat are not retained 

by the district in the ordinary course of business, provided that the public interest in 
withholding these records clearly outweighs the public interest in disclosure  (Government 
Code 6254) 

 
(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
 
2. Records specifically generated in connection with or prepared for use in litigation to  

which the district is a party or to respond to claims made against the district pursuant to the 
Tort Claims Act, until the litigation or claim has been finally adjudicated or otherwise 
settled, or beyond, if the records are protected by some other provision of law (Government 
Code 6254, 6254.25; Fairley v. Superior Court; 71 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 235 (1988)) 

 
3. Personnel records, medical records, student records, or similar materials, the disclosure of 

which would constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy  (Government Code 
6254) 

 
(cf. 4112.65/4212.65/4312.6 - Personnel Files5) - Criminal Record Check) 
(cf. 4112.626/4212.626/4312.62 - Maintenance of Criminal Offender Records6 - Personnel Files) 

 
The home addresses and, home telephone numbers, personal cell phone numbers, or 
birthdate of employees may only be disclosed as follows: (Government Code 6254.3) 

 
a. To an agent or a family member of the employee 
 



4 
 

b. To an officer or employee of a state agency or another school district or county 
office of education when necessary for the performance of official duties 

 
c. To an employee organization pursuant to regulations and decisions of the Public 

Employment Relations Board, except that the home address and any telephone 
number for an unless the employee who performs law enforcement-related 
functions, or the birth date of any employee, or requests in writing that the 
information shall not be disclosed 

 
 Upon written request of any employee, the district shall not disclose the 

employee's home address, home telephone number, personal cell phone 
number, or birth date, and the district shall remove this information from any 
mailing list of the district except a list used exclusively to contact the employee. 

 
(cf. 4140/4240/4340 - Bargaining Units) 
 

d. To an agent or employee of a health benefit plan providing health services or 
administering claims for health services to district employees and their enrolled 
dependents, for the purpose of providing the health services or administering claims 
for employees and their enrolled dependents 

 
(cf. 4154/4254/4354 - Health and Welfare Benefits) 
 
44. Student records, except directory information and other records to the extent 

permitted under the law, when disclosure is authorized by law 
 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 
(cf. 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records) 
 
4.5. Test questions, scoring keys, and other examination data except as provided by law  

(Government Code 6254) 
 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 
(cf. 6162.52 - High School Exit Examination) 
 
5.6. Without affecting the law of eminent domain, the contents of real estate appraisals or 

engineering or feasibility estimates and evaluations made for or by the district relative to 
the acquisition of property, or to prospective public supply and construction contracts, until 
all of the property has been acquired or all of the contract agreement obtained (Government 
Code 6254) 

 
6.7. Information required from any taxpayer in connection with the collection of local taxes 

that is received in confidence and the disclosure of the information to other persons would 
result in unfair competitive disadvantage to the person supplying the information 
(Government Code 6254) 

 



5 
 

7.8. Library circulation and patron use records of a borrower or patron including, but not limited 
to, his/her name, address, telephone number, email address, borrowing information, or use 
of library information resources, except when disclosure is to a person acting within the 
scope of his/her duties in the administration of the library, to a person authorized in 
writing by the individual to whom the records pertain, or by court order  (Government 
Code 6254, 6267) 

 
(cf. 6163.1 - Library Media Centers) 
 
8.9. Records for which the disclosure is exempted or prohibited pursuant to state or federal law, 

including, but not limited to, provisions of the Evidence Code relating to privilege 
(Government Code 6254) 

 
(cf. 9124 - Attorney) 
 
9.10. Documents prepared by or for the district to assess its vulnerability to terrorist attack or 

other criminal acts intended to disrupt district operations and that are for distribution or 
consideration in closed session  (Government Code 6254) 

 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 
 
10.11. Recall petitions, petitions for special elections to fill Board vacancies, or petitions for the 

reorganization of the school district  (Government Code 6253.5) 
 
(cf. 9223 - Filling Vacancies) 
 
11.12. Minutes of Board meetings held in closed session  (Government Code 54957.2) 
 
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 
 
12.13. Computer software developed by the district  (Government Code 6254.9) 
 
13.14. Information security records, the disclosure of which would reveal vulnerabilities to, or 

otherwise increase potential for an attack on, the district's information technology system 
(Government Code 6254.19) 

 
14.15. Records that contain individually identifiable health information, including records that 

may be exempt pursuant to physician-patient privilege, the Confidentiality of Medical 
Information Act, and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (Government 
Code 6254, 6255) 

 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 
 
15.16. Any other records listed as exempt from public disclosure in the California Public Records 

Act or other statutes 
 



6 
 

16. Any other records for which the district can demonstrate that, based on the particular facts 
of the case, the public interest served by not disclosing the record clearly outweighs the 
public interest served by disclosure of the record  (Government Code 6255) 

 
Inspection of Records and Requests for Copies 
 
Any person may request a copy or inspection of any district record that is open to the public and 
not exempt from disclosure.  (Government Code 6253) 
 
Within 10 days of receiving any request to inspect or copy a district record, the Superintendent or 
designee shall determine whether the request seeks release of a disclosable public record in the 
district's possession.  The Superintendent or designee shall promptly inform the person making the 
request of his/her determination and the reasons for the decision.  (Government Code 6253) 
 
In unusual circumstances, the Superintendent or designee may extend the 10-day limit for up to 14 
days by providing written notice to the requester and setting forth the reasons for the extension 
and the date on which a determination is expected to be made.  Unusual circumstances include the 
following, but only to the extent reasonably necessary to properly process the request:  
(Government Code 6253) 
 
1. The need to search for and collect the requested records from field facilities or other 

establishments that are separate from the office processing the request 
 
2. The need to search for, collect, and appropriately examine a voluminous amount of separate 

and distinct records which are demanded in a single request 
 
3. The need for consultation, which shall be conducted with all practicable speed, with 

another agency (e.g., a state agency or city) having a substantial interest in the 
determination of the request or among two or more components of the district (e.g., two 
different school sites) with substantial interest in the request 

 
4. In the case of electronic records, the need to compile data, write programming language or 

a computer program, or construct a computer report to extract data 
 
If the Superintendent or designee determines that the request seeks disclosable public records, the 
determination shall state the estimated date and time when the records will be made available. 
(Government Code 6253) 
 
Public records shall be open to inspection at all times during district office hours.  Any reasonably 
segregable portion of a record shall be made available for inspection by any person requesting the 
record after deletion of the portions that are exempted by law.  (Government Code 6253) 
 
Upon request for a copy that reasonably describes an identifiable record, an exact copy shall be 
promptly provided unless it is impracticable to do so. (Government Code 6253) 
 



7 
 

The Superintendent or designee may charge an amount for copies that reflects the direct costs of 
duplication.  Written requests to waive the fee shall be submitted to the Superintendent or designee. 
 
In addition to maintaining public records for public inspection during district office hours, 
the district may comply with public records requests by posting any public record on the 
district's web site and, in response to a public records request, directing the member of the 
public to the location on the web site where the record can be found. However, if the member 
of the public is unable to access or reproduce the record from the web site, the district shall 
promptly provide an exact copy of the public record upon payment of duplication fees, if 
applicable, unless it is impracticable to provide an exact copy.  (Government Code 6253) 
 
If any person requests that a public record be provided in an electronic format, the district shall 
make that record available in any electronic format in which it holds the information.  The district 
shall provide a copy of the electronic record in the format requested as long as the requested format 
is one that has been used by the district to create copies for its own use or for use by other agencies. 
(Government Code 6253.9) 
 
The cost of duplicating an electronic record shall be limited to the direct cost of producing a copy 
of the record in electronic format.  However, the requester shall bear the cost of producing the 
copy of the electronic record, including the cost to construct the record and the cost of 
programming and computer services necessary to produce the copy, under the following 
circumstances:  (Government Code 6253.9) 
 
1. The electronic record is one that is produced only at otherwise regularly scheduled 

intervals. 
 
2. The request would require data compilation, extraction, or programming to produce the 

record. 
 
Assistance in Identifying Requested Records 
 
If the Superintendent or designee denies a request for disclosable records, he/she shall assist the 
requester in making a focused and effective request that reasonably describes an identifiable 
record.  To the extent reasonable under the circumstances, the Superintendent or designee shall do 
all of the following:  (Government Code 6253.1) 
 
1. Assist in identifying records and information responsive to the request or the purpose of 

the request, if specified 
 

If, after making a reasonable effort to elicit additional clarifying information from the 
requester to help identify the record, the Superintendent or designee is still unable to 
identify the information, this requirement shall be deemed satisfied. 

 
2. Describe the information technology and physical location in which the records exist 
 



8 
 

3. Provide suggestions for overcoming any practical basis for denying access to the records 
or information sought 

 
Provisions of the Public Records Act shall not be construed so as to delay access for purposesor 
obstruct the inspection or copying of inspectingpublic records open to the public.  Any notification 
denying a request for public records shall state the name and title of each person responsible for 
the denial.  (Government Code 6253) 
 
 
 
 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
approved:   April 10, 2007  Sierraville, California 
revised:   March 13, 2012 
revised:   January 10, 2017 Loyalton, California 
 
 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 
Copyright 2016 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 
All rights reserved. 
 



1 
 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
 
Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3543 
  
TRANSPORTATION SAFETY AND EMERGENCIES 
 

Cautionary Notice:  Government Code 17581.5 relieves districts from the obligation to perform specified mandated 
activities when the Budget Act does not provide reimbursement during that fiscal year.  The Budget Act of 2014 
(SB 8522015 (AB 93, Ch. 2510, Statutes of 20142015) 2016 (SB 826, Ch. 23, Statutes of 2016) extends the 
suspension of these requirements through the 2014-152015-162016-17 fiscal year.  As a result, certain provisions 
of the following administrative regulation related to the removal of chemicalstransportation safety plans and 
safety instruction for students may be suspended. 

 
Each day, prior to driving a school bus, each school bus driver shall inspect the bus to ensure that it is in 
safe operating condition and equipped as required by law and that all equipment is in good working 
order.  At the completion of each day's work, the driver shall prepare and sign a written report of the 
condition of the equipment listed specified in 13 CCR 1215,., including The report shall indicate any 
defect or deficiency discovered by or reported to him/her the driver which would affect safe operation 
or result in mechanical breakdown of the bus, or, indicating that if no defect or deficiency was discovered 
or reported, shall so indicate. Any defect or deficiency that would affect safe operation shall be repaired 
prior to operating the bus.  (13 CCR 1215) 
 
(cf. 3540 - Transportation) 
(cf. 3541.1 - Transportation for School-Related Trips) 
(cf. 3542 - School Bus Drivers) 
 
In the event of a school bus accident, the driver shall immediately notify the California Highway Patrol, 
the Superintendent or designee, and, if the bus is operated under contract, the driver's employer.  The 
driver shall not leave the immediate vicinity of the bus to seek aid unless necessary.  (13 CCR 1219) 
[MOVED DOWN] 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall review all investigations of bus incidents and accidents to develop 
preventative measures. [MOVED DOWN] 
 
(cf. 4112.42/4212.42/4312.42 - Drug and Alcohol Testing for School Bus Drivers) 
 
Passenger Restraint Systems 
 

Note: Pursuant to Vehicle Code 27316 and 27316.5, any school bus or student activity bus purchased or leased 
for use in California must be equipped with a passenger restraint system if the bus was manufactured on or 
after the dates specified in law, as described below.  Although it is the manufacturer's responsibility to  
ensure installation of appropriate passenger restraint systems, the district should be aware that buses 
manufactured or purchased from outside California may need to be modified to comply with the state's 
requirements. In addition, according to the California Department of Education's (CDE) Passenger Restraints 
Frequently Asked Questions, districts may, but are not required to, retrofit older school buses with passenger 
restraint systems with the original equipment manufacturer's approval. In determining whether to retrofit buses, 
the CDE recommends that districts consider the age of the bus, the total cost of the retrofit, and the required 
reinspection of the bus by the California Highway Patrol. 



2 
 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that any school bus or student activity bus which is 
purchased or leased by the district is equipped with a combination pelvic and upper torso passenger 
restraint system at all designated seating positions if that bus:  (Vehicle Code 27316, 27316.5; 13 CCR 
1201) 
 
1. Is a Type 1 school bus manufactured on or after July 1, 2005 which is designed for carrying more 

than 16 passengers and the driver 
 
2. Is a Type 2 school bus or student activity bus manufactured on or after July 1, 2004 which meets 

one of the following criteria: 
 

a. a. Is designed for carrying 16 or fewer passengers and the driver 
 

b. b.Has a manufacturer's vehicle weight rating of 10,000 pounds or less and is designed for 
carrying not more than 20 passengers and the driver 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall prioritize the allocation of school buses purchased, leased, or 
contracted to ensure that elementary students receive first priority for new school buses equipped with 
passenger restraint systems whenever feasible. 
 
When a school bus or student activity bus is equipped with a passenger restraint system, all passengers 
shall use the passenger restraint system.  (5 CCR 14105) 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Vehicle Code 27316, no person, district, or organization may be held criminally liable if a 
passenger improperly uses or fails to use the passenger restraint system. However, the CDE's Passenger 
Restraints Frequently Asked Questions encourages districts to develop procedures to enforce disciplinary 
actions for nonuse or improper use of the passenger restraint system. 
The following optional paragraph may be expanded to specify the steps that should be taken by the driver to 
reasonably ensure that all passengers are properly restrained (e.g., verbal instructions to students, visual 
inspection), which may vary depending on the age/grade levels of the students. Such steps also may be 
incorporated in district regulations adopted pursuant to 5 CCR 14103 related to student conduct on buses, bus 
driver authority, and the suspension of riding privileges; see BP/AR 5131.1 - Bus Conduct. 

 
Bus drivers shall be instructed regarding procedures to enforce the proper use of the passenger restraint 
system.  Students who fail to follow instructions of the bus driver may be subject to discipline, including 
suspension of riding privileges, in accordance with Board policy and administrative regulations. 
 
(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct) 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 
 
Fire Extinguishers 
 
Each school bus shall be equipped with at least one fire extinguisher located in the driver's compartment 
which meets the standards specified in law.  In addition, a wheelchair school bus shall have another fire 
extinguisher placed at the wheelchair loading door or emergency exit. All fire extinguishers shall be 
regularly inspected and serviced in accordance with regulations adopted by the State Fire Marshal.  
(Education Code 39838; 13 CCR 1242; 19 CCR 574-575.3) 
 



3 
 
Electronic Communications Devices 
 
A bus driver shall not drive a school bus or student activity bus while using a wireless telephone, except 
under the following conditions:  (Vehicle Code 23123, 23125) 
 

Vehicle Code 23125 prohibits a person from driving a school bus while using a wireless telephone except for 
work-related or emergency purposes. Vehicle Code 23123.5, as amended by AB 1785 (Ch. 660, Statutes of 
2016), prohibits the driver of a motor vehicle (including a school bus or school activity bus pursuant to 
Vehicle Code 415 and 545) from using an electronic wireless communications device for any purpose, 
including, but not limited to, text-based communication, but provides an exception for voice-operated 
and hands-free operation or for a function that requires only a single swipe or tap of the driver's finger 
as long as the device is mounted on the windshield, dashboard, or center console of the vehicle. The 
following paragraph limits the use of any electronic communications device to work-related or 
emergency purposes. The district should consult legal counsel if it is considering allowing broader use 
of such devices. 

 
A bus driver shall not drive is prohibited from driving a school bus or student activity bus while using 
a wireless telephone except under the following conditions: (Vehicle Code 23123, 23125) or other 
electronic wireless communications device except for work-related or emergency purposes, 
including, but not limited to, contacting a law enforcement agency, health care provider, fire 
department, or other emergency service agency or entity. In any such permitted situation, the 
driver shall only use a wireless telephone or device that is specifically designed and configured to 
allow voice-operated and hands-free operation or a function that requires only a single swipe or 
tap of the driver's finger provided the device is mounted on the windshield, dashboard, or center 
console of the bus. (Vehicle Code 23123.5, 23125) 
 
1.  When he/she uses a wireless telephone that is specifically designed and configured to allow 

hands-free listening and talking, provided it is used in that manner while driving 
2.  For emergency purposes, including, but not limited to, a call to a law enforcement agency, health 

care provider, fire department, or other emergency service agency or entity 
3.  For work-related purposes 
(cf. 3513.1 - Cellular Phone Reimbursement) 
 

Note: Vehicle Code 23123.5 generally prohibits any person from driving a motor vehicle while using an electronic 
wireless communications device for text-based communication. AB 1536 (Ch. 92, Statutes of 2012) amended Vehicle 
Code 23123.5 to add an exception for the use of voice-operated and hands-free operation of an electronic wireless 
communications device. At its discretion, the district may establish conditions that are more restrictive than law and 
should revise the following paragraph accordingly. 

 
A bus driver shall not drive while using an electronic wireless communications device to write, send, or 
read a text-based communication, including, but not limited to, text messages, 
 instant messages, and email, unless the device is specifically designed and configured to allow voice-
operated and hands-free operation and is used in that manner. This prohibition does not include reading, 
selecting, or entering a telephone number or name in an electronic wireless communications device for 
the purpose of making or receiving a telephone call.  (Vehicle Code 23123.5) 
 
Safe Bus Operations 
 

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 39834, any Governing Board member, employee, or other person who 
knowingly operates or permits operation of a school bus in excess of its seating capacity is guilty of a 



4 
 

misdemeanor. However, the Board is authorized to adopt policy that allows seating capacities to be exceeded 
in cases of emergency; see BP/AR 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan. 

 
School buses and student activity buses shall not be operated whenever the number of passengers 
exceeds bus seating capacity, except when necessary in emergency situations which require that 
individuals be transported immediately to ensure their safety.  (Education Code 39834) 
 
(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan) 
 

Note: Vehicle Code 34501.6 mandates any district that provides student transportation to adopt procedures 
that limit bus operation when atmospheric conditions reduce visibility, as described below, and that give 
drivers for school activity trips discretionary authority to discontinue operation when it is unsafe. 

 
School bus operations shall be limited when atmospheric conditions reduce visibility on the roadway to 
200 feet or less during regular home-to-school transportation service.  Bus drivers for school activity 
trips may discontinue bus operation whenever they determine that it is unsafe to continue operation 
because of reduced visibility.  (Vehicle Code 34501.6) 
 
Unauthorized Entry 
 
The Superintendent or designee may place a notice at bus entrances that warns against unauthorized 
entry.  The driver or another school official may order any person to disembark if that person enters a 
bus without prior authorization.  (Education Code 39842; 13 CCR 1256.5) 
 
(cf. 3515.2 - Disruptions) 
 
Transportation Safety Plan for Boarding and Exiting Buses 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop a transportation safety plan containing procedures for 
school personnel to follow to ensure the safe transport of students. The plan shall include address all of 
the following:  (Education Code 39831.3) 
 
1. Procedures for determiningdDetermining if students in grades prekindergarten through 8 require 

an escort to cross a private road or highway at a bus stop pursuant to Vehicle Code 22112 
 
2. Procedures for all students in grades prekindergarten through 8 to follow as they board and exit 

the bus at their bus stops 
 
3. Procedures for boardingbBoarding and exiting a school bus at a school or other trip destination 
 

Note: SB 1072 (Ch. 721, Statutes of 2016) amended Education Code 39831.3 to require that the transportation plan 
include the procedures specified in items #4-5 below. 

 
4.  Procedures to ensure that a student is not left unattended on a school bus, student activity 

bus, or youth bus 
 

Note: The procedures included in the transportation safety plan to ensure that a student is not left unattended on 
a bus may include the requirements of Vehicle Code 28160, as added by SB 1072 (Ch. 721, Statutes of 2016). 
Pursuant to Vehicle Code 28160, on or before the beginning of the 2018-19 school year, each school bus, school 
activity bus, youth bus, and child care motor vehicle (i.e., vehicle designed, used, or maintained for more than eight 



5 
 

persons, including the driver, that is used by a child care provider to transport children) must be equipped with a 
"child safety alert system" (i.e., a device located at the interior rear of a vehicle that requires the driver to either 
manually contact or scan the device before exiting the vehicle). Student activity buses may be exempt from this 
requirement if certain procedures are followed, as specified in Vehicle Code 28160. 

 
Such procedures shall include, on or before the beginning of the 2018-19 school year, the 
installation of a child safety alert system at the interior rear of each bus that requires the 
driver to either manually contact or scan the device, thereby prompting the driver to 
inspect the entirety of the interior of the vehicle before exiting. A student activity bus may 
be exempt from this requirement under the conditions specified in Vehicle Code 28160. 

 
5. Procedures and standards for designating an adult chaperone, other than the driver, to 

accompany students on a school activity bus 
 
A copy of the plan shall be kept at each school site and made available upon request to the California 
Highway Patrol. (CHP).  (Education Code 39831.3) 
 
Parental Notifications 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide written safety information to the parents/guardians of all 
students in grades prekindergarten through 6 who have not previously been transported in a district 
school bus or student activity bus.  This information shall be provided upon registration and shall contain:  
(Education Code 39831.5) 
 
1. A list of school bus stops near each student's home 
 
2. General rules of conduct at school bus loading zones 
 
3. Red light crossing instructions 
 
4. A description of the school bus danger zone 
 
5. Instructions for safety while safely walking to and from school bus stops 
 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
Student Instruction 
 
Students who are transported in a school bus or student activity bus shall receive instruction in school 
bus emergency procedures and passenger safety as follows:  (Education Code 39831.5; 5 CCR 14102) 
 
1. Each year, all students who receive home-to-school transportation in a school bus shall be 

provided appropriate instruction in safe riding practices and emergency evacuation drills. 
 
2. At least once each school year, all students in grades prekindergarten through 8 who receive 

home-to-school transportation shall receive safety instruction which includes, but is not limited 
to: 

 
a. Proper loading and unloading procedures, including escorting by the driver 



6 
 
 

b. How to safely cross the street, highway, or private road 
 

c.In school buses with passenger restraint systems, instruction in the use of such systems as specified in 
5 CCR 14105, including, but not limited to, the proper  
 

fastening and release of the passenger restraint system, acceptable placement of passenger 
restraint systems on students, times at which the passenger restraint systems should be 
fastened and released, and acceptable placement of the passenger restraint systems when 
not in use 

 
d. Proper passenger conduct 
 
e. Bus evacuation procedures 
 
f. Location of emergency equipment 
 
As part of this instruction, students shall evacuate the school bus through emergency exit doors.  
Instruction also may include responsibilities of passengers seated next to an emergency exit. 
 
Each time the above instruction is given, the following information shall be documented: 
 
a. District name 
 
b. School name and location 
 
c. Date of instruction 
 
d. Names of supervising adults 
 
e. Number of students participating 
 
f. Grade levels of students 

 
g. Subjects covered in instruction 
 
h. Amount of time taken for instruction 

 
i. Bus driver's name 
 
j. Bus number 
 
k. Additional remarks 

 
This documentation shall be kept on file at the district office or the school for one year and shall 
be available for inspection by the California Highway Patrol. 

 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 



7 
 
 
3. Before departing on a school activity trip, all students riding on a school bus or student activity 

bus shall receive safety instruction which includes, but is not limited to, the location of 
emergency exits and the location and use of emergency equipment.  This instruction also may 
include responsibilities of passengers seated next to an emergency exit. 

 
 
Bus Accidents 
 
In the event of a school bus accident, the driver shall immediately notify the CHP, and the 
Superintendent or designee, and, if the bus is operated under contract, the driver's employer. The driver 
shall not leave the immediate vicinity of the bus to seek aid unless necessary.  (13 CCR 1219) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a report of each accident that occurred on public 
or private property involving a school bus with students aboard. The report shall contain pertinent 
details of the accident and shall be retained for 12 months from the date of the accident. If the 
accident was not investigated by the CHP, the Superintendent or designee shall forward a copy of 
the report to the local CHP within five work days of the date of the accident.  (13 CCR 1234) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall review all investigations of bus incidents and accidents to develop 
preventative measures. 
 
(cf. 4112.42/4212.42/4312.42 - Drug and Alcohol Testing for School Bus Drivers) 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
39830-39842398423  Transportation, school buses 
39860  Contract for transportation; requirement that student not be left unattended 
51202  Instruction in personal and public health and safety 
PENAL CODE 
241.3  Assault against school bus driver 
243.3  Battery against school bus driver 
VEHICLE CODE 
415  Definition of motor vehicle 
545-546  Definition of school bus and student activity bus 
22112  Loading and unloading passengers 
23123  Use of wireless telephone prohibited while driving motor vehicle 
23123.5  Text communications prohibited while driving motor vehicle Use of wireless telephone or communications 
device while driving; exceptions 
23125  Use of wireless telephone prohibited while driving school bus 
27316-27316.5  Passenger restraint systems 
28160  Child safety alert system 
34500  California Highway Patrol responsibility to regulate safe operation of school buses 
34501.5  California Highway Patrol responsibility to adopt rules re: safe operation of school buses 
34501.6  School buses; reduced visibility 
34508  California Highway Patrol responsibility to adopt rules re: equipment and bus operations of school buses 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
14100-14105  School buses and student activity buses 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 13 
1200-1293  Motor carrier safety 
2480  Airborne toxic control measure; limitation on bus idling 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 19 
574-575.3  Inspection and maintenance of fire extinguishers 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 49 



8 
 

571.1-571.500  Motor vehicle standards, including school buses 
 

Management Resources: 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Passenger Restraints Frequently Asked Questions 
WEB SITES 
California Association of School Business Officials: http://www.casbo.org 
American School Bus Council: http://www.americanschoolbuscouncil.org 
California Association of School Transportation Officials: http://www.castoways.org 
California Department of Education, Office of School Transportation: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/tn 
California Highway Patrol: http://www.chp.ca.gov 
National Coalition for School Bus Safety: http://www.ncsbs.org 
National Transportation Safety Board: http://www.ntsb.gov 
U.S. Department of Transportation, National Highway Traffic Safety Administration: http://www.nhtsa.dot.gov 

 
 
 
 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Regulation SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
approved:  November 12, 2014 Sierraville, California 
revised:  January 10, 2017 
 
 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 
Copyright 2016 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 
All rights reserved. 



Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 
 
AR 3550  
Business and Noninstructional Operations 
 
Nutrition Standards for School Meals 
 
Meals or food items provided through the district's food services program shall:  (Education Code 49430, 
49430.5, 49430.7, 49550, 49553; 42 USC 1758, 1773; 7 CFR 210.10, 220.8) 
 
***Note: Education Code 49550 requires all schools to provide at least one nutritionally adequate meal 
each school day to students who meet federal eligibility criteria for free and reduced-price meals, 
regardless of whether the school receives reimbursements through the National School Lunch Program 
(42 USC 1751-1769j), School Breakfast Program (42 USC 1773), and/or State Meal Program (Education 
Code 49490-49494) or receives no funding support for school meals; see BP/AR 3553 - Free and 
Reduced Price Meals.  Education Code 49553 defines a "nutritionally adequate meal" as one that 
qualifies for reimbursement under federal child nutrition program regulations.  Schools participating in 
the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast Program must extend meal service to all students enrolled in 
the school.*** 
 
Meals, food items, and beverages provided through the district's food services program shall:  (Education 
Code 49531, 49553; 42 USC 1758, 1773) 
 
1. Comply with the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast Program standards for meal patterns, 
nutrient levels, and calorie requirements for the ages/grade levels served, as specified in 7 CFR 210.10 or 
220.8, or the state's menu planning options of Shaping Health as Partners in Education as applicable 
 
***Note:  Item #2 below reflects an additional requirement for (1) districts participating in the National 
School Lunch and/or Breakfast Program which choose to apply for state reimbursements for free and 
reduced-price meals in addition to their base reimbursement and (2) districts participating in the State 
Meal Program. Pursuant to Education Code 49430.7, such districts may not provide foods that are deep 
fried, par fried, or flash fried. Other districts may delete or use this item at their discretion.*** 
***Note: In addition, Education Code 49430.7 requires that foods provided by such districts not contain 
artificial trans fat.  7 CFR 210.10 and 220.8, as amended by 77 Fed. Reg. 17, added the same requirement 
to the nutrition standards for the National School Lunch and Breakfast Programs applicable to all districts; 
thus, the prohibition against trans fat is covered by item #1 above.*** 
 
2. Not be deep fried, par fried, or flash fried by the district or school or as part of the manufacturing 
process 
 
3.  Not contain artificial trans fat, as defined in Education Code 49430 and 49430.7 
 
(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program) 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
(cf. 3554 - Other Food Sales) 



(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 
(cf. 5141.27 - Food Allergies/Special Dietary Needs) 
 
Nutrition Standards for Foods and Beverages Sold Outside the Reimbursable Meal Programs 
 
Any foods or beverages that are not sold as part of the National School Lunch or Breakfast Program shall 
be sold to students only if they meet the nutrition standards specified in Education Code 49430-49431.7 
and 5 CCR 15575-15578. 
 
Drinking Water 
 
The district shall provide access to free, fresh drinking water during meal times in food service areas at all 
district schools, including, but not limited to, areas where reimbursable meals under the National School 
Lunch or Breakfast Program are served or consumed.  (Education Code 38086; 42 USC 1758) 
 
Special Milk Program 
 
***Note: The following section is optional. The Special Milk Program (42 USC 1772; 7 CFR 215.1-
215.18) is a federally funded program which assists in providing milk at reasonable prices to students in 
schools that do not participate in the National School Lunch or Breakfast Program.  Pursuant to 7 CFR 
215.1 and 215.7, districts may choose to provide milk at no charge to students who qualify for free and 
reduced-price meals; see BP 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals.*** 
 
Any school that does not participate in the National School Lunch or Breakfast Program may participate 
in the Special Milk Program to provide all enrolled students with reasonably priced milk.  (7 CFR 215.1) 
 
Food Safety 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's food service program meets the applicable 
sanitation and safety requirements of the California Retail Food Code as set forth in Health and Safety 
Code 113700-114437. 
 
***Note: The remainder of this section is for use by any district participating in the National School 
Lunch and/or Breakfast Program and may be used or revised by other districts at their discretion. 42 USC 
1758 requires such districts to implement a food safety program applicable to any facility or part of a 
facility in which food is stored, prepared, or served. Pursuant to 42 USC 1758 and 7 CFR 210.13 and 
220.7, the food safety program must comply with Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point (HACCP) 
principles, which include establishing measures needed to prevent hazards at each stage of food 
production. Pursuant to 7 CFR 210.13, districts may implement either the "traditional" HACCP system or 
the simplified "process approach."  Under the process approach, foods are grouped together according to 
preparation process and the same control measure is applied to all menu items within the group, rather 
than developing an HACCP plan for each item. These principles are described in the USDA's Guidance 
for School Food Authorities: Developing a School Food Safety Program Based on the Process Approach 
to HACCP Principles.*** 
 
For all district schools participating in the National School Lunch and/or School Breakfast Program, the 
Superintendent or designee shall implement a written food safety program for the storage, preparation, 
and service of school meals which complies with the national Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point 



(HACCP) system. The district's HACCP plan shall include, but is not be limited to, a determination of 
critical control points and critical limits at each stage of food production, monitoring procedures, 
corrective actions, and recordkeeping procedures. (42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 210.13, 220.7) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide ongoing staff development on food safety to food service 
managers and employees. AnyEach new employee, including a substitute, or volunteer shall complete 
initial food safety training prior to handling food. The Superintendent or designee shall document the 
date, trainer, and subject of each training. 
 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall assign staff to maintain records and logs documenting food safety 
activities, including, but not limited to, records of food deliveries, time and temperature monitoring 
during food production, equipment temperature (freezer, cooler, thermometer calibration), corrective 
actions, verification or review of safety efforts, and staff training. 
 
Inspection of Food Facilities 
 
All food preparation and service areas shall be inspected in accordance with Health and Safety Code 
113725-113725.1 and applicable county regulations. 
 
Each school participating in the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast Program shall, during each 
school year, obtain a minimum of two food safety inspections conducted by the county environmental 
health agency.  (42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 210.13, 220.7) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall retain records from the most recent food safety inspection. All 
schools shall post a notice indicating that the most recent inspection report is available to any interested 
person upon request. (Health and Safety Code 113725.1; 42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 210.13, 210.15, 220.7) 
 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
 
         SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation       SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
approved:  April 10, 2007            Sierraville, California 
revised:  June 14, 2011       Loyalton, California 
revised: January 10, 2017 



1 
 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
 
All Personnel BP 4030 
 
NONDISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT 
 

Note: The following Board policy and accompanying administrative regulation are mandated pursuant to 
Government Code 11138 and 2 CCR 11023, as added by Register 2015, No. 50. The California Fair 
Employment and Housing Act (FEHA) (Government Code 12900-12996) prohibits employers from 
discriminating against employees and job applicants on the basis of actual or perceived race, color, ancestry, 
national origin, age, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, religious creed, 
physical or mental disability, medical condition, marital status, or genetic information. Pursuant to 2 CCR 
11009, as amended by Register 2015, No. 50, these same protections apply to unpaid interns and 
volunteers. Consequently, the district is required to also notify unpaid interns and volunteers about 
these protections. For more information about volunteers, see BP/AR 1240 - Volunteer Assistance. 
 
The same or similar protections are available to employees and job applicants under various provisions of 
federal law, including Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC 2000d-2000d-7), Title VII of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC 2000e-2000e-17), Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 USC 1681-
1688), the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 USC 12101-12213), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 
1973 (29 USC 794), and the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act (42 USC 2000ff-2000ff-11). 
 
For policy addressing sexual harassment of and by employees, see BP/AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual 
Harassment. 

 
The Governing Board is determined to provide district employees, interns, volunteers, and job 
applicants a safe, positive environment where they are assured of full and equal employment access and 
opportunities, protection from harassment or intimidation, and freedom from any fear of reprisal or 
retribution for asserting their employment rights in accordance with law.  This policy shall apply to all 
district employees and, to the extent required by law, to interns, volunteers, and job applicants. 
 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 
(cf. 4111/4211/4311 - Recruitment and Selection) 
 
The Board prohibits No district employees from discriminating shall be discriminated against or 
harassing anyharassed by any coworker, supervisor, manager, or other district employee or job 
applicant person with whom the employee comes in contact in the course of employment, on the 
basis of the person's employee's actual or perceived race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, 
age, marital status, pregnancy, physical or mental disability, medical condition, genetic information, 
military and veteran status, gender, gender identity, gender expression, sex, or sexual orientation, or 
his/her association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
 

Note:  The following paragraph illustrates unlawful discriminatory practices as specified in Government Code 
12940. Pursuant to Labor Code 1197.5, an employer is prohibited from paying an employee at wage 
rates less than the rates to employees of the opposite sex for work requiring equal skill, effort, and 
responsibility and performed under similar conditions, except when the payment is based on some other 



2 
 

bona fide factor such as education, training, or experience. In addition, Labor Code 1197.5, as amended 
by SB 1063 (Ch. 866, Statutes of 2016), prohibits the payment of different wage rates to employees for 
similar work based on race or ethnicity and prohibits the use of prior salary history by itself to justify 
any disparity in compensation under the bona fide factor exception.  

 
The Board also prohibits discrimination against any employee or job applicant in 
compensationDiscrimination in employment based on the characteristics listed above is prohibited 
in all areas of employment and in all employment-related practices, including the following: 
 
1. Discrimination in hiring, compensation, terms, conditions, and other privileges of employment  

 
2. and the takingtTaking of any an adverse employment action, including, but not limited to, such 

as termination or the denial of employment, promotion, job assignment, or training, against an 
employee or job applicant based on any of the categories listed above.   

 
(cf. 4151/4251/4351 - Employee Compensation) 
(cf. 4154/4254/4354 - Health and Welfare Benefits) 
 
3. Harassment consists of uUnwelcome conduct, whether verbal, physical, or visual, conduct that 

is based on any of the prohibited categories of discrimination listed above and that is so severe 
or pervasive that it as to adversely affects an individual's employee's employment opportunities, 
or that has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with the individual's work 
performance, or createsing an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment 

 
Note:  Item #4 below addresses the numerous specific practices prohibited under Government Code 12940 or 2 
CCR 11006-11086 in relation to certain protected categories. For example, because "sex" as defined in 
Government Code 12926 includes pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding, or related medical conditions, any of these 
conditions may be the basis for an employee's sex discrimination claim.  As the specific prohibitions are too 
numerous to list in policy, it is recommended that district legal counsel be consulted when questions arise as to any 
specific claim. 

 
4. Actions and practices identified as unlawful or discriminatory pursuant to Government 

Code 12940 or 2 CCR 11006-11086, such as: 
 
a. Prohibited sSex discrimination includes discrimination based on an employee's or job 

applicant's pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding, or any related medical condition or on 
an employee's gender, gender expression, or gender identity, including transgender 
status 

 
(cf. 4033 - Lactation Accommodation) 
(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment) 
 

b. Prohibited discrimination on the basis of religious creed includes Religious creed 
discrimination based on an employee's or job applicant's religious belief or observance, 
including his/her religious dress or grooming practices, . In accordance with Government 
Code 12940, prohibited discrimination on the basis of religious creed also includes or 
based on the district's failure or refusal to use reasonable means to accommodate an 
employee's or job applicant's religious belief, observance, or practice which conflicts with 
an employment requirement. However, the district shall not accommodate an employee's 
religious dress practice or religious grooming practice if it requires segregation of the 



3 
 

individual from other employees or the public or if it would result in a violation of this 
policy or any law prohibiting discrimination. 

 
Prohibited sex discrimination includes discrimination based on an employee's or job applicant's 
pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding, or any related medical condition. 

c. Disability discrimination based on a district requirement for a medical or 
psychological examination of a job applicant, or an inquiry into whether a job 
applicant has a mental or physical disability or a medical condition or as to the 
severity of any such disability or condition, without the showing of a job-related 
need or business necessity   

 
(cf. 4119.41/4219.41/4319.41 - Employees with Infectious Disease) 

 
d. Disability discrimination based on the district's failure to make reasonable 

accommodation for the known physical or mental disability of an employee or to 
engage in a timely, good faith, interactive process with an employee, to determine 
effective reasonable accommodations for the employee, when he/she has requested 
reasonable accommodation for a known physical or mental disability or medical 
condition  

 
(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation) 
 

 Note: Retaliation against complainants or other participants in the grievance procedures is prohibited by 
Government Code 12940 and 34 CFR 110.34. In addition to the general prohibition against retaliation, 
Government Code 12940, as amended by AB 987 (Ch. 122, Statutes of 2015), provides that an employee or 
job applicant who requests accommodation for his/her physical or mental disability or religious belief is 
protected from retaliation as specified below. CSBA recommends that this protection be extended to all 
protected characteristics and has modified the policy accordingly. 
 
In Thompson v. North American Stainless LP, the U.S. Supreme Court held that a third party may file an anti-
retaliation suit. 

 
Harassment consists of unwelcome verbal, physical, or visual conduct that is based on any of the 
prohibited categories of discrimination listed above and that is so severe or pervasive that it adversely 
affects an individual's employment opportunities, has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering 
with the individual's work performance, or creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work 
environment. 
 
The Board also prohibits retaliation against any district employee or job applicant who opposes any 
discriminatory employment practice by the district or its employee, agentemployees, agents, or 
representatives or who complains, testifies, assists, or in any way participates in the district's complaint 
procedures process pursuant to this policy. No employee or job applicant who requests an 
accommodation for any protected characteristic listed in this policy shall be subjected to any punishment 
or sanction, regardless of whether the request was granted.  (Government Code 12940) 
 
The following position is designated as Site Administrator for Nondiscrimination in Employment: 
 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Superintendent or Designee 
109 Beckwith Road 
Loyalton, CA 96118 



4 
 
 
Complaints concerning employment discrimination, harassment, or retaliation shall immediately be 
investigated in accordance with procedures specified in the accompanying administrative regulation. 
 

Note:  Pursuant to 2 CCR 11019, in certain instances, an employee's (especially a supervisor's) knowledge or 
notice of harassment prohibited conduct of another employee or individual may subject the district to liability. 
Therefore, it is recommended that the district require its employees with knowledge of harassment or 
discrimination to report the incident to the appropriate district authorities. In addition, Government Code 12940 
provides that an employer may be responsible for the sexual harassment of employees by nonemployees where 
the employer knows or should have known of the conduct and failed to take immediate and corrective action. 
See BP/AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment.  

 
Any supervisory or management employee who observes or has knowledge of an incident of prohibited 
discrimination or harassment shall report the incident to the Superintendent or designated district 
coordinator as soon as practical after the incident.  All other employees are encouraged to report such 
incidents to their supervisor immediately. The district shall protect any employee who does reportreports 
such incidents from retaliation. 
 

Note:  Government Code 12940 requires districts to take all reasonable steps, including training, to prevent 
prohibited discrimination and harassment.  In addition, 2 CCR 11023, as added by Register 2015, No. 15, 
imposes an affirmative duty on the district to create a workplace environment that is free from all 
prohibited practices. The U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, in its April 2006 New 
Compliance Manual Section 15: Race and Color Discrimination, suggests proactive preventive measures for 
employers, including the adoption of transparent recruitment, hiring, and promotion processes; provision of 
training to employees; and periodic review of employment practices. For details of such measures, see the 
accompanying administrative regulation. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall use all appropriate means to reinforce the district's 
nondiscrimination policy. He/she shall provide training and information to employees about how to 
recognize harassment, and discrimination, or other related conduct, how to respond appropriately, and 
components of the district's policies and regulations regarding discrimination. The Superintendent or 
designee shall regularly review the district's employment practices and, as necessary, shall take action 
to ensure district compliance with the nondiscrimination laws. 
 
In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall post in a conspicuous place on district premises, 
the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing publication on workplace 
discrimination and harassment issued pursuant to 2 CCR 11013. 
 
Any district employee who engages in prohibited discrimination, harassment, or retaliation or who aids, 
abets, incites, compels, or coerces another to engage or attempt to engage in such behavior in violation 
of this policy shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal. 
 
(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 
CIVIL CODE 
51.7  Freedom from violence or intimidation 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
11135  Unlawful discrimination 
11138  Rules and regulations 



5 
 

12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act 
PENAL CODE 
422.56  Definitions, hate crimes 
CODE  OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
11006-11086  Discrimination in employment 
11013  Recordkeeping 
11019 Terms, conditions and privileges of employment 
11023  Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction 
11024  Sexual harassment training and education 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 
621-634  Age Discrimination in Employment Act 
794  Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000d-2000d-7  Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 
2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 
2000ff-2000ff-11  Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 
2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
6101-6107  Age discrimination in federally assisted programs 
12101-12213  Americans with Disabilities Act 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 
35.101-35.190  Americans with Disabilities Act 
 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
100.6  Compliance information 
104.7  Designation of responsible employee for Section 504 
104.8  Notice 
106.8  Designation of responsible employee and adoption of grievance procedures 
106.9  Dissemination of policy 
110.1-110.39  Nondiscrimination on the basis of age 
COURT DECISIONS 
Thompson v. North American Stainless LP, (2011) 131 S.Ct. 863 
Shephard v. Loyola Marymount, (2002) 102 Cal.App.4th 837 

 
Management Resources:  

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING PUBLICATIONS 
California Law Prohibits Workplace Discrimination and Harassment, December 2014 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 
Notice of Non-Discrimination, August 2010 
U.S. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION PUBLICATIONS 
Questions and Answers: Religious Discrimination in the Workplace, 2008 
New Compliance Manual Section 15: Race and Color Discrimination, April 2006 
Enforcement Guidance:  Vicarious Employer Liability for Unlawful Harassment by Supervisors, June 1999 
WEB SITES 
California Department of Fair Employment and Housing:  http://www.dfeh.ca.gov 
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 
U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission:  http://www.eeoc.gov 

 
 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
approved:  April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California 
revised:  June 12, 2012 Loyalton, California 
revised:  May 14, 2013 
revised:  February 9, 2016 
minor revision:  June 14, 2016 
revised:  January 10, 2017 
 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 
Copyright 2016 by School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 
All rights reserved. 
 



1 
 

 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
 
All Personnel AR 4030 
 
NONDISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Government Code 11138 and 2 CCR 11023, as added by Register 2015, No. 50, 
districts are mandated to adopt rules and regulations to ensure that district programs and activities are 
free from unlawful discriminatory practices.  Pursuant to 2 CCR 11009, as amended by Register 
2015, No. 50, it is unlawful to discriminate against any person who serves in an unpaid internship 
or other limited-duration program to gain unpaid work experience, on any basis protected by 
Government Code 12940. 

 
All allegations of discrimination in employment, including those involving an intern, 
volunteer, or job applicant, shall be investigated and resolved in accordance with procedures 
specified in this administrative regulation. 
 

Note: Many nondiscrimination laws and regulations require identification of an employee who will be 
responsible for compliance with the nondiscrimination laws, as provided in the following paragraph. 
For example, pursuant to 34 CFR 104.7, 106.8, and 110.25, the district is required to designate the 
person(s) responsible for the overall implementation of the requirements of federal laws which prohibit 
discrimination on the basis of disability, sex, and age, i.e., Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
(29 USC 794), Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 USC 1681-1688), and the Age 
Discrimination in Employment Act (29 USC 621-634). The district should fill in the blanks below to 
designate the responsible employee and his/her contact information. 

 
The district designates the position identified below as its coordinator for nondiscrimination in 
employment to coordinate the district's efforts to comply with state and federal nondiscrimination 
laws and to answer inquiries regarding the district's nondiscrimination policies.  The coordinator 
may be contacted at: 
 
Personnel Technician 
109 Beckwith Road 
P. O. Box 955 
Loyalton, CA 96118 
530-993-1660 Ext. *842 
 
Measures to Prevent Discrimination 
 

Note: Pursuant to Government Code 12940 and 2 CCR 11023, as added by Register 2015, No. 50, 
the district is required requires districts to take all reasonable steps to prevent unlawful discrimination 
and harassment. 2 CCR 11023, as added, specifies certain requirements to be included in the 
district's policy.  The following section reflects the requirements of 2 CCR 11023 and other 
applicable laws or regulations, as indicated.  The following section reflects "best practices" for 
preventing unlawful harassment or discrimination, as identified in the California Department of Fair 



2 
 

 

Employment and Housing (DFEH) and the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) 
informational publications.  Examples of such publications are the DFEH's California Law Prohibits 
Workplace Discrimination and Harassment and the EEOC's New Compliance Manual Section 15: Race 
and Color Discrimination. Districts should investigate these and other relevant publications and 
determine which practices to adopt. 

 
To prevent unlawful discrimination, harassment, and retaliation against district employees, 
volunteers, interns, and job applicants in district employment, the Superintendent or designee 
shall implement the following measures:  
 
1. Publicize the district's nondiscrimination policy and regulation, including the complaint 

procedures and the superintendent'scoordinator's contact information, to employees, 
volunteers, interns, job applicants, and the general public by:  (5 CCR 4960; 34 CFR 100.6, 
106.9) 

 
a. a.Including them in each announcement, bulletin, or application form that is used 

in employee recruitment 
 

b. b.Posting them in all district schools and offices, including staff lounges and other 
prominent locations 

 
c. c.Posting them on the district's web site and providing easy access to them through 

district-supported social media, when available   
 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media) 
 
2. Disseminate the district's nondiscrimination policy to all employees by one or more 

of the following methods: (2 CCR 11023) 
 
a. Printing and providing a copy of the policy to all employees with an 

acknowledgment form for each employee to sign and return 
 
b. Sending the policy via email with an acknowledgment return form 
 
c. Posting the policy on the district intranet with a tracking system ensuring all 

employees have read and acknowledged receipt of the policies 
 
d. Discussing district policy with employees upon hire and/or during a new hire 

orientation session 
 
e. Any other way that ensures employees receive and understand the policy 

 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
 
23. Provide to employees handouts that contains information that clearly describes the district's 

nondiscrimination policy, procedures for filing a complaint, and resources available to 



3 
 

 

anyone who feels that he/she has been the victim of any discriminatory or harassing 
behavior   

34 
 
3. Provide training to employees, volunteers, and interns regarding the district's 

nondiscrimination policy, including what constitutes unlawful discrimination, harassment, 
and retaliation and how and to whom a report of an incident should be made   

 
Note: Pursuant to 2 CCR 11023, as added by Register 2015, No. 50, if the district has 50 or more 
employees, its sexual harassment prevention training must include instruction for its supervisors 
as specified in the following paragraph.  

 
 Training for supervisors shall include the requirement to report any complaint of 

misconduct to a designated representative, such as the coordinator, human resources 
manager, or Superintendent or designee as a topic in the sexual harassment 
prevention training required pursuant to 2 CCR 11024  (2 CCR 11023) 

 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 
(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment) 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 
445. Periodically review the district's recruitment, hiring, and promotion processes and regularly 

monitor the terms, conditions, and privileges of employment to ensure district compliance 
with law   
 

6. For any district facility where 10 percent of employees have a language other than 
English as their spoken language, translate the policy into every language spoken by 
at least 10 percent of the workforce 

 
Complaint Procedure 
 

Note:  34 CFR 106.8 and 110.25 mandate any district that receives federal financial assistance to adopt 
and publish grievance procedures providing for prompt and equitable resolution of employee complaints 
alleging discrimination on the basis of sex or age 2 CCR 11023, as added by Register 2015, No. 50, 
mandates that a district's policy include a complaint process with specified requirements.  Some 
of the requirements of 2 CCR 11023 are similar to those required under existing case law. 
 
Courts have held that an employer may mitigate liability for hostile environment employment 
discrimination when (1) the employer took reasonable care to prevent and promptly correct the 
discriminatory or harassing conduct (i.e., provided a complaint procedure) and (2) the aggrieved 
employee unreasonably failed to take  
advantage of corrective opportunities offered by the employer (i.e., failure to file a complaint).  In its 
June 1999 Enforcement Guidance: Vicarious Employer Liability for Unlawful Harassment by 
Supervisors, EEOC outlines the elements of an effective complaint procedure to include (1) a clear 
explanation of the process; (2) protection against retaliation; (3) designation of multiple individuals 
authorized to receive complaints; (4) a mechanism for prompt, thorough, and impartial investigation; 



4 
 

 

(5) assurance of immediate and appropriate corrective action; and (6) information about time frames for 
filing charges with the EEOC or the DFEH. 
 
While the EEOC's guidance recommends a "prompt" investigation, neither the law nor the EEOC 
delineates a specific time frame for resolution. The EEOC's guidance acknowledges that whether an 
investigation is considered "prompt" may vary depending on the seriousness and complexity of the 
circumstances and that intermediate measures may be necessary to prevent further harassment during 
the investigation. 
 
The following section, including the listed timelines, is consistent with the EEOC's guidance and should 
be modified to reflect district practice. 

 
Any complaint by an employee or job applicant alleging unlawful discrimination or harassment 
shall be addressed in accordance with the following procedures: 
 
1.Notice and Receipt of Complaint:  A complainant who is an employee shall may inform his/her 
direct supervisor.,.  However, if the supervisor is the person against whom the employee is 
complaining, the employee shall inform, another supervisor, the coordinator,  or the 
Superintendent.  A job applicant shall inform the coordinator or the Superintendent or designee. 
 
 The complainant may file a written complaint in accordance with this procedure, or if 

he/she is an employee, may first attempt to resolve the situation informally with his/her 
supervisor. 

 
 A supervisor or manager who has received information about an incident of discrimination 

or harassment, or has observed such an incident, shall report it to the 
superintendentcoordinator, whether or not the complainant files a written complaint. 

 
 The written complaint should contain the complainant's name, the name of the individual 

who allegedly committed the act, a description of the incident, the date and location where 
the incident occurred, any witnesses who may have relevant information, other evidence 
of the discrimination or harassment, and any other pertinent information which may assist 
in investigating and resolving the complaint. 

 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation) 
(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment) 
 
2. Investigation Process:  The superintendent shall initiate an impartial investigation of an 

allegation of discrimination or harassment within five business days of receiving notice of 
the alleged discriminatory or harassing behavior, regardless of whether a written 
complaint has been filed or whether the written complaint is complete. 

 
 The superintendent shall meet with the complainant to describe the district's complaint 

procedure and discuss the actions being sought by the complainant in response to the 
allegation. The superintendent shall inform the complainant that the allegations 
investigation of the allegations will be fair, timely, and thorough and will be conducted 
in a manner that provides all parties due process and reaches reasonable conclusions 
based on the evidence collected.  He/she shall also inform the parties that the 



5 
 

 

investigation will be kept confidential to the extent possible, but that some information 
may be revealed as necessary to conduct an effective investigation. 

 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files) 
(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
 
 If the superintendent determines that a detailed fact-finding investigation is necessary, 

he/she shall begin the investigation immediately. As part of this investigation, the 
superintendent should interview the complainant, the person accused, and other persons 
who could be expected to have relevant information. 

 
 The coordinator shall track and document the progress of the investigation to ensure 

reasonable progress and shall inform the parties as necessary. 
 
 When necessary to carry out his/her investigation or to protect employee safety, the 

superintendent and/or coordinator may discuss the complaint with athe superintendent, 
district legal counsel, or the district’s board president. 

 
 The coordinator, under the direction of the superintendent, shall determine whether interim 

measures, such as scheduling changes, transfers, or leaves, need to be taken before the 
investigation is completed to ensure that further incidents do not occur. are averted. The 
coordinator shall ensure that such interim measures do not constitute retaliation. 

 
3. Written Report on Findings and Remedial/Corrective Action:  No more than 20 

business days after receiving the complaint, the superintendent shall conclude the 
investigation and prepare a written report of his/her findings. This timeline may be 
extended for good cause. If an extension is needed, the coordinator shall notify the 
complainant parties and explain the reasons for the extension. 

 
 The report shall include the decision and the reasons for the decision and shall summarize 

the steps taken during the investigation. If a determination has been made that 
discrimination or harassment occurred, the report also shall include any corrective action(s) 
that have been or will be taken to address the behavior, correct the effect on provide 
appropriate options for remedial actions and resolutions for the complainant, and 
ensure that retaliation or further discrimination or harassment does not occur is prevented. 

 
 The report shall be presented to the complainant, the person accused, and the 

Superintendent and coordinator. 
 
4. Appeal to the Governing Board of Education::  The complainant or the person accused 

may appeal any findings to the Board within 10 business days of receiving the written 
report of the superintendent's findings.  The Superintendent or designee shall provide the 
Board with all information presented during the investigation.  Upon receiving an appeal, 
the Board shall schedule a hearing as soon as practicable.  Any complaint against a district 
employee shall be addressed in closed session in accordance with law. The Board shall 
render its decision within 10 business days 



6 
 

 

 
(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees) 
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 
 
Other Remedies 
 

Note: Items #1-3 below state the time limits within which employees must file their complaints. The 
EEOC's guidance states that it is important for employers' nondiscrimination policies to contain 
information about time frames for filing charges of unlawful discrimination or harassment with the 
EEOC or DFEH.  Employees should be informed that the deadline for filing charges starts to run from 
the last date of the unlawful act, not from the conclusion of the employer's complaint investigation. 
Pursuant to DFEH procedures, DFEH will automatically forward any complaint it has accepted for 
investigation to the EEOC when the matter falls within the EEOC's jurisdiction. 

 
In addition to filing a discrimination or harassment complaint with the district, a person may file a 
complaint with either the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH) or the 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC).  The time limits for filing such complaints 
are as follows: 
 

Note: Pursuant to Government Code 12960, an employee has one year to file a complaint with DFEH, 
although that period may be extended under certain circumstances, such as when a person obtains 
knowledge of the unlawful practice after the expiration of the one-year period. 

 
1. To file a valid complaint with DFEH, within one year of the alleged discriminatory act(s), 

unless an exception exists pursuant to Government Code 12960 
 

Note:  42 USC 2000e-5 specifies that a person must file a discrimination complaint with the EEOC 
within 180 days of the alleged discriminatory act. Pursuant to 42 USC 2000e-5, the 180-day timeline 
for compensation discrimination starts when the discriminatory paycheck is received and that each 
discriminatory paycheck restarts the timeline for the filing of a complaint. 

 
2. To file a valid complaint directly with EEOC, within 180 days of the alleged discriminatory 

act(s) (42 USC 2000e-5) 
 
3. To file a valid complaint with EEOC after first filing a complaint with DFEH, within 300 

days of the alleged discriminatory act(s) or within 30 days after the termination of 
proceedings by DFEH, whichever is earlier (42 USC 2000e-5) 

 
 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
approved:  April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California 
revised:  February 9, 2016 Loyalton, California 
revised:  January 10, 2017  
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 
Copyright 2016 by CaliforniaSchool Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 
All rights reserved. 



1 
 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
 
All Personnel BP 4119.11 
  4219.11 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT  4319.11 
 
 

Note:  Education Code 231.5 mandates the district to have a written policy on sexual harassment.  As part of this mandate, 
the district also should adopt a sexual harassment policy related to students; see BP/AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment. 
 
Generally, courts recognize two types of conduct as constituting sexual harassment. "Quid Pro Quo" ("this for that") 
sexual harassment is considered to have occurred when a person in a position of authority makes another individual's 
educational or employment benefits conditional upon that other person's willingness to engage in unwanted sexual 
behavior (e.g., promising a promotion for sex).  "Hostile environment" sexual harassment, on the other hand, is conduct 
by the perpetrator that is so severe, persistent, or pervasive that it creates a hostile, intimidating, or abusive educational 
or professional environment for another. Sexual harassment also covers retaliatory behavior against a complainant, 
witness, or other participant in the complaint process. Pursuant to Government Code 12940 and 2 CCR 11009, as 
amended by Register 2015, No. 50, interns, volunteers, and job applicants are entitled to the same protection 
against sexual harassment as applicable to employees. 
 
Sexual harassment may be a violation of is prohibited pursuant to Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC 
2000e-2000e-17) and/or Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (42 USC 2000h-2-2000h-6), as well as the 
California Fair Employment and Housing Act, Government Code 12900-12996. 
 
Government Code 12940 and 34 CFR 106.9 extend protection against sexual harassment to job applicants. In addition, 
pPursuant to Government Code 12940, employers may be held liable for sexual harassment committed against their 
workers by clients, customers, or other third parties if they knew or should have known of the harassment and failed to 
take immediate and appropriate corrective action to stop the harassment. 

 
The Governing Board of Education prohibits sexual harassment of district employees and job applicants.  
The Board also prohibits retaliatory behavior or action against district employees or other persons who 
complain, testify, or otherwise participate in the complaint process established pursuant to this policy 
and accompanying administrative regulation. This policy shall apply to all district employees and, 
when applicable, to interns, volunteers, and job applicants. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 
 

Note: Federal and state courts have provided guidance that may help employers avoid liability or mitigate damages in 
sexual harassment cases. In Department of Health Services v. Superior Court (McGinnis), the California Supreme Court 
outlined ways in which measures that may enable employers may be able to reduce damages, including establishing 
anti-harassment policies, communicating those policies to employees, consistently enforcing their policies, preserving the 
confidentiality of employees who report harassment, and preventing retaliation against reporting employees. The United 
States U.S. Supreme Court has held, in Burlington Industries v. Ellerth, that, for certain claims under federal law, an 
employer may defend against sexual harassment claims by proving that: (1) reasonable care was exercised to prevent and 
promptly correct any sexually harassing behavior, and (2) the employee (victim) failed to take advantage of the preventive 
and corrective opportunities provided by the employer. 
Pursuant to Government Code 12950.1, employers with 50 or more employees are required to provide two hours of sexual 
harassment training to supervisory employees. See the accompanying administrative regulation for timelines and training 
requirements. 
 



2 
 

Items #1-4 below reflect the courts' guidance and Government Code 12950.1, and should be modified to reflect district 
practice. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall take all actions necessary to ensure the prevention, investigation, 
and correction of sexual harassment, including but not limited to: 
 
1. Providing training to employees in accordance with law and administrative regulation 
 
2. Publicizing and disseminating the district's sexual harassment policy to staff 
 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
 
3. Ensuring prompt, thorough, and fair investigation of complaints 
 
4. Taking timely and appropriate corrective/remedial action(s), which may require interim 

separation of the complainant and the alleged harasser and subsequent monitoring of 
developments 

 
All complaints and allegations of sexual harassment shall be kept confidential to the extent necessary to 
carry out the investigation or to take other subsequent necessary actions.  (5 CCR 4964 2 CCR 11023) 
 

Note: Because an employee's (especially a supervisor's) knowledge or notice of sexual harassment may subject the district 
to liability, it is recommended that the district require its employees with knowledge or notice of sexual harassment to 
report the harassment to the appropriate authorities. Pursuant to 2 CCR 11034, as amended by Register 2015, No. 50, 
the district may be liable for sexual harassment committed by a supervisor, coworker, or a third party.  In addition, 
as part of its affirmative duty to prevent sexual harassment, the district is required pursuant to 2 CCR 11023, as 
amended by Register 2015, No. 50, to instruct supervisors to report complaints. 

 
Any district employee or job applicant who feels that he/she has been sexually harassed or who has 
knowledge of any incident of sexual harassment by or against another employee, a job applicant or a 
student, shall immediately report the incident to his/her supervisor, the principal, district administrator, 
or Superintendent. 
 
A supervisor, principal, or other district administrator who receives a harassment complaint shall 
promptly notify the Superintendent or designee. 
 

Note: In Faragher v. City of Boca Raton, one of the factors relied on by the U.S. Supreme Court in finding liability for 
harassment by a supervisor was the failure of the policy to provide an assurance to its employees that harassing supervisors 
may be bypassed in registering complaints. 

 
Complaints of sexual harassment shall be filed in accordance with AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in 
Employment. An employee may bypass his/her supervisor in filing a complaint where the supervisor is 
the subject of the complaint. 
 
Any district employee who engages or participates in sexual harassment or who aids, abets, incites, 
compels, or coerces another to commit sexual harassment against a district employee, job applicant, or 
student is in violation of this policy and is subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal. 
 
(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
 



3 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act, especially: 
12940  Prohibited discrimination 
12950.1 Sexual harassment training 
LABOR CODE 
1101  Political activities of employees 
1102.1  Discrimination:  sexual orientation 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
7287.8 Retaliation 
7288.0 Sexual harassment training and education 
11009  Employment discrimination 
11021 Retaliation 
11023 Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction 
11024  Sexual harassment training and education 
11034  Terms, conditions, and privileges of employment 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs receiving state financial 
assistance 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000d-2000d-7  Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 
2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 
2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX, 1972 Education Act Amendments 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
106.9  Dissemination of policy 
COURT DECISIONS 
Department of Health Services v. Superior Court of California, (2003) 31 Cal.4th 1026 
Faragher v. City of Boca Raton, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 2275 
Burlington Industries v. Ellreth, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 2257 
Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 1989 
Oncale v. Sundowner Offshore Serv. Inc., (1998) 118 S.Ct. 998 
Meritor Savings Bank, FSB v. Vinson et al., (1986) 447 U.S. 57 
 

Management Resources: 
OFFICE OF CIVIL RIGHTS AND NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF ATTORNEYS GENERAL 
Protecting Students from Harassment and Hate Crime, January, 1999 
WEB SITES 
California Department of Fair Employment and Housing:  http://www.dfeh.ca.gov 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission:  http://www.eeoc.gov 
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/index.html 

 
 
 
 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
approved:  April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California 
revised:  November 10, 2015 Loyalton, California 
revised:  January 10, 2017 
 
 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 
Copyright 2016 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 
All rights reserved. 
 



1 
 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
 
All Personnel AR 4119.11 
  4219.11 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT  4319.11 
 
 

Note: The following administrative regulation is mandated pursuant to Education Code 231.5 and includes 
reasonable steps for preventing the occurrence of discrimination and harassment as required pursuant to 
Government Code 12940 (California Fair Employment and Housing Act). The focus of this administrative 
regulation is on sexual harassment by and of employees. Pursuant to Government Code 12940 and 2 CCR 
11009, as amended by Register 2015, No. 50, interns, volunteers, and job applicants are entitled to the same 
protection against sexual harassment as applicable to employees. 
 
The focus of this administrative regulation is on sexual harassment of employees. For information related to the 
sexual harassment of involving students, see BP/AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment. 

 
This administrative regulation shall apply to all allegations of sexual harassment involving 
employees, interns, volunteers, and job applicants, but shall not be used to resolve any 
complaint by or against a student. 
 
Definitions 
 

Note: In Oncale v. Sundowner Offshore Services, Inc., the U.S. Supreme Court held that same-sex sexual 
harassment could be actionable under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC 2000e-2000e-17). 

 
Prohibited sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, unwelcome sexual advances, 
unwanted requests for sexual favors, or other unwanted verbal, visual, or physical conduct of a 
sexual nature made against another person of the same or opposite sex in the work or educational 
setting when:  (Education Code 212.5; Government Code 12940; 5 CCR 4916 2 CCR 11034) 
 
1. Submission to the conduct is made explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of the 

individual's employment. 
 
2. Submission to or rejection of such the conduct by the individual is used as the basis for an 

employment decision affecting him/her. the individual. 
 
4.3. Submission to or rejection of the conduct by the other individual is used as the basis for 

any decision affecting him/her the individual regarding benefits, services, honors, 
programs, or activities available at or through the district. 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Government Code 12940, conduct may meet the definition of sexual harassment specified in 
item #3 below constitutes sexual harassment if it is sufficiently severe, pervasive, or offensive to create a hostile 
or abusive work environment for the victim, regardless of whether or not the alleged harasser is motivated by 
sexual desire for the victim. 

 



2 
 

 
3. The conduct has the purpose or effect of having a negative impact upon the individual's 

work or has the purpose or effect of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work 
environment. Regardless of whether or not the alleged harasser was motivated by sexual 
desire, the conduct is sufficiently severe, persistent, pervasive, or objectively offensive as 
to create a hostile or abusive working environment or to limit the individual's ability to 
participate in or benefit from an education program or activity. Prohibited sexual 
harassment also includes conduct which, regardless of whether or not it is motivated 
by sexual desire, is so severe or pervasive as to unreasonably interfere with the 
victim's work performance or create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work 
environment. 

 
4.Submission to or rejection of the conduct by the other individual is used as the basis for any 
decision affecting him/her regarding benefits, services, honors, programs, or activities available at 
or through the district. 
 

Note: Pursuant to Government Code 12940, the district may be held liable for sexual harassment committed against 
employees by clients, customers, or other third parties if the district knew, or should have known, of the harassment 
and failed to take immediate and appropriate corrective action to stop the harassment. The following paragraph 
clarifies that sexual harassment may include acts by supervisors, co-workers, or other parties and should be 
modified to reflect district practice. 

 
Other exampleseExamples of actions that might constitute sexual harassment in the work or 
educational setting, whether committed by a supervisor, a co-worker, or a non-employee, in the 
work or educational setting include, but are not limited to: 
 
1. Unwelcome verbal conduct such as sexual flirtations or propositions; graphic comments 

about an individual's body; overly personal conversations or pressure for sexual activity; 
sexual jokes or stories; unwelcome sexual slurs, epithets, threats, innuendoes, derogatory 
comments, sexually degrading descriptions, or the spreading of sexual rumors 

 
2. Unwelcome visual conduct such as drawings, pictures, graffiti, or gestures; sexually 

explicit emails; displaying sexually suggestive objects 
 
3. Unwelcome physical conduct such as massaging, grabbing, fondling, stroking, or brushing 

the body; touching an individual's body or clothes in a sexual way; cornering, blocking, 
leaning over, or impeding normal movements 

 
Training 
 

Note: The following optional paragraph is consistent with a district's obligation affirmative duty to protect its 
employees from sex discrimination, including sexual harassment, pursuant to 2 CCR 11023, as added by 
Register 2015, No. 50.and may be modified to reflect district practice. Although training is not legally required 
for all employees, Government Code 12940 requires districts to take reasonable steps to prevent harassment.  In 
addition, since the language of BP/AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment requires employees to  
report sexual harassment against students, training such employees to recognize and address sexual harassment 
and address reports of incidents furthers the district's interest in protecting both employees and students against 



3 
 

prohibited conduct.  Thus, it is strongly recommended that districts periodically provide sexual harassment training 
or information to all their employees, especially those who work at school sites. 
 
Provision of periodic training to all district employees could also help foster a positive work environment and 
mitigate damages against a district in the event of sexual harassment litigation. In Department of Health Services 
v. Superior Court (McGinnis), the California Supreme Court held that employers that have taken reasonable steps 
to prevent and correct workplace sexual harassment may be able to reduce damages in the event of a lawsuit. Such 
steps may include establishing anti-harassment policies and communicating those policies to employees. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all employees receive training regarding the 
district's sexual harassment policies when hired and periodically thereafter.  Such The training 
shall include the procedures for reporting and/or filing complaints involving an employee, 
employees' duty to use the district's complaint procedures, and employee obligations when a sexual 
harassment report involving a student is made to the employee. 
 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
(cf. 4031 - Complaints Concerning Discrimination4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 
 

Note:  The remainder of this section is for use by districts with 50 or more employees.  Although the law does 
not require districts with fewer than 50 employees to provide sexual harassment training to supervisors, court 
decisions have held that providing training may help mitigate damages in sexual harassment suits. Additionally, 
provision of supervisor training may be a factor in determining whether a district has taken reasonable 
steps to prevent discrimination and harassment pursuant to Government Code 12940. 
 
Government Code 12950.1 requires such districts to provide two hours of sexual harassment training and education 
once every two years to every supervisory employee, defined as any employee with the authority to take 
employment action, including hiring, transferring, suspending, and disciplining other employees, or recommend 
such action if the exercise of that authority is not merely routine or clerical in nature. All newly hired supervisors 
or employees promoted to a supervisory position must receive the training within six months of their hire or 
assumption of the supervisory position. Compliance with this law does not insulate the district from any liability 
for harassment. 
 
Governing Board members, as elected officials, are not usually considered "supervisors"; however, since Board 
members have the authority to hire, reward, or discipline the Superintendent and other employees, Board members 
may also be required to receive sexual harassment training. Districts should consult with legal counsel to ensure 
that the appropriate individuals receive training. 
 
Although the law does not require districts with fewer than 50 employees to provide sexual harassment training to 
supervisors, court decisions have held that providing training may help mitigate damages in sexual harassment 
suits. Districts with fewer than 50 employees may delete or modify the remainder of this section to reflect district 
practice. 

 
Every two years, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that supervisory employees receive 
at least two hours of classroom or other effective interactive training and education regarding 
sexual harassment. All such newly hired or promoted employees shall receive training within six 
months of their assumption of the  new position.  (Government Code 12950.1) 
 
A supervisory employee is any employee with having the authority, in the interest of the district, 
to hire, transfer, suspend, lay off, promote, discharge, assign, reward, or discipline other 
employees, or to effectively recommend such action.the responsibility to direct them, adjust 
their grievances, or to effectively recommend such action, when the exercise of the authority is 



4 
 

not of a merely routine or clerical nature, but requires the use of independent judgment.  
(Government Code 12926) 
 
(cf. 4300 - Administrative and Supervisory Personnel) 
 

Note: Government Code 12950.1 and 2 CCR 11023 11024, as amended and renumbered by Register 2015, No. 
50, require that the training for supervisory employees contain specified components and be presented by trainers 
or educators with knowledge and expertise in the prevention of harassment, discrimination, and retaliation. 

 
The district's sexual harassment training and education program for supervisory employees shall 
include the provision of:  (Government Code 12950.1; 2 CCR 11023 be aimed at assisting them 
in preventing and effectively responding to incidents of sexual harassment, as well as 
implementing mechanisms to promptly address and correct wrongful behavior.  The training 
shall include, but is not limited to, the following:  (Government Code 12950.1; 2 CCR 
1102311024) 
 
1. Information and practical guidance regarding federal and state  laws on the prohibition, 

against and the prevention, and correction of sexual harassment, and the remedies available 
to the victims of sexual harassment in employment.victims in employment civil actions, 
and potential district and/or individual exposure or liability 

 
2. Practical examples aimed at instructing supervisors in the prevention of harassment, 

discrimination, and retaliation.retaliationThe types of conduct that constitute sexual 
harassment and practical examples which illustrate sexual harassment, 
discrimination, and retaliation using training modalities such as role plays, case 
studies, and group discussions, based on factual scenarios taken from case law, news 
and media accounts, and hypotheticals based on workplace situations and other 
sources 

 
3. A  component on the prevention of abusive conduct that addresses the use of derogatory 

remarks, insults, or epithets, other verbal or physical conduct that a reasonable person 
would find threatening, intimidating, or humiliating, and the gratuitous sabotage or 
undermining of a person's work performance 

 
43. A supervisor's obligation to report sexual harassment, discrimination, and retaliation 

of which he/she becomes aware and what to do if the supervisor himself/herself is 
personally accused of harassment 

 
4. Strategies for preventing harassment, discrimination, and retaliation and 

appropriate steps to ensure that remedial measures are taken to correct harassing 
behavior, including an effective process for investigation of a complaint 

 
5. The essential elements of the district's anti-harassment policy, including the limited 

confidentiality of the complaint process and resources for victims of unlawful sexual 
harassment, such as to whom they should report any alleged sexual harassment, and 
how to use the policy if a harassment complaint is filed 

 



5 
 

4.6. A copy of the district's sexual harassment policy and administrative regulation, which each 
participant shall acknowledge in writing that he/she has received 

 
3.7. A component on tThe definition and prevention of abusive conduct that addresses the use 

of derogatory remarks, insults, or epithets, other verbal or physical conduct that a 
reasonable person would find threatening, intimidating, or humiliating, and the gratuitous 
sabotage or undermining of a person's work performance 

 
5. All other contents of mandated training specified in 2 CCR 11023 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall retain for at least two years the records of any training 
provided to supervisory employees. Such records shall include the names of trained employees, 
date of the training, the type of training, and the name of the training provider.  (2 CCR 11023 
11024) 
 
Notifications 
 

Note: Education Code 231.5 requires that the district provide copies of its policy on sexual harassment to staff, as 
specified below. In addition, 2 CCR 110234 requires that supervisory employees undergoing mandatory training 
receive a copy of the district's policy and acknowledge receipt of the policy; see item #6 in the section "Training" 
above. 

 
A copy of the Board policy and this administrative regulation shall:  (Education Code 231.5) 
 
1. Be displayed in a prominent location in the main administrative building, district office, or 

other area of the school where notices of district rules, regulations, procedures, and 
standards of conduct are posted 

 
2. Be provided to every district employee at the beginning of the first quarter or semester of 

the school year or whenever a new employee is hired 
 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
 
3. Appear in any school or district publication that sets forth the school's or district's 

comprehensive rules, regulations, procedures, and standards of conduct 
 

Note:  Government Code 12950 requires the Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH) to develop 
posters and information sheets on employment discrimination and the illegality of sexual harassment. These 
documents are available on DFEH's web site. 

 
All employees shall receive either a copy of information sheets prepared by the California 
Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH) or a copy of district information sheets that 
contain, at a minimum, components on:  (Government Code 12950) 
 
1. The illegality of sexual harassment 
 
2. The definition of sexual harassment under applicable state and federal law 



6 
 

 
3. A description of sexual harassment, with examples 
 
4. The district's complaint process available to the employee 
 
5. The legal remedies and complaint process available through DFEH and the Equal 

Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) 
 
6. Directions on how to contact DFEH and the EEOC 
 
7. The protection against retaliation provided by 2 CCR 11021 for opposing harassment 

prohibited by law or for filing a complaint with or otherwise participating in an 
investigation, proceeding, or hearing conducted by DFEH and the EEOC. 

 
In addition, the district shall post, in a prominent and accessible location, DFEH's poster on 
discrimination in employment and the illegality of sexual harassment.  (Government Code 12950) 
 
 
 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
approved:  April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California 
revised:     November 10, 2015 Loyalton, California  
revised:     January 10, 2017 
 
 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 
Copyright 2016 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 
All rights reserved. 
 



1 
 

 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
 
Students BP 5030(a) 
 
STUDENT WELLNESS 
 

Note: The Healthy, Hunger-Free Kids Act of 2010 (42 USC 1758b) mandates each district participating in the 
National School Lunch Program (42 USC 1751-1769j) or any program in the Child Nutrition Act of 1966 (42 
USC 1771-17913), including the School Breakfast Program, to adopt a districtwide school wellness policy. 
The following policy fulfills this mandate and should be revised to reflect district practice. Other policies in 
the district's policy manual will likely contain additional provisions supporting this wellness policy, such as 
BP 3312 - Contracts, BP/AR 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program, BP/AR 3552 - Summer Meal 
Program, BP/AR 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals, BP/AR 3554 - Other Food Sales, BP/AR 6142.7 - 
Physical Education and Activity, and BP/AR 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education. 
 
Although the Governing Board has discretion under 42 USC 1758b to determine specific policies appropriate 
for its schools, the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) is required to develop regulations 7 CFR 210.30, 
as added by 81 Fed. Reg. 50151, that provides a framework and guidelines to assist districts in establishing 
their student wellness policies, including minimum content requirements, assurance of stakeholder 
participation in the development and updates, and periodic assessment and disclosure of compliance 
with the district's wellness policy. and to provide technical assistance through the Centers for Disease Control 
and Prevention (CDC). Currently tThe U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) and Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention (CDC) provide resources and implementation tools on their web sites. In addition, 
CSBA's Student Wellness: A Healthy Food and Physical Activity Policy Resource Guide summarizes research 
on the relationship between nutrition and physical activity and student achievement, provides worksheets for 
policy development, and contains other resources that may be useful in the development of the wellness policy. 
 
The following paragraph links student wellness with the components of a coordinated school health approach 
recommended in the California Department of Education's (CDE) Health Framework for California Public 
Schools and may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 
The Governing Board recognizes the link between student health and learning and desires to provide a 
comprehensive program promoting healthy eating and physical activity for district students.  The 
Superintendent or designee shall coordinate and align district efforts to support student wellness through 
health education, physical education and activity, health services, nutrition services, psychological and 
counseling services, and a safe and healthy school environment. In addition, the Superintendent or 
designee may develop strategies for promoting staff wellness and for involving parents/guardians and 
the community in reinforcing students' understanding and appreciation of the importance of a healthy 
lifestyle. 
 
(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 
(cf. 3513.3 - Tobacco-Free Schools) 
(cf. 3514 - Environmental Safety) 
(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs) 
(cf. 5131.61 - Drug Testing) 
(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco) 
(cf. 5131.63 - Steroids) 
(cf. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies) 
(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases) 
 (cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations) 



2 
 

 

(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations) 
(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry) 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 
(cf. 6142.1 - Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Education) 
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 
 
School Health Wellness Council/Committee 
 

Note: 42 USC 1758b and 7 CFR 210.30, as added by 81 Fed. Reg. 50151, requires that districts permit 
specified stakeholders be permitted to participate in the development, implementation, and periodic review 
and update of the district's wellness policy. One method to achieve continuing involvement of those groups 
and other key stakeholders is could be through the creation of a school wellness health council, as 
recommended in the CDE's Health Framework for California Public Schools.  Pursuant to Government Code 
54952, committees created by formal action of the Board are subject to open meeting laws (the Brown Act); 
see AR 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall encourage parents/guardians, students, food service employees, 
physical education teachers, school health professionals, Board members, school administrators, and 
members of the public to participate in the development, implementation, and periodic review and update 
of the district's student wellness policy.  (42 USC 1758b; 7 CFR 210.30) 
 
To fulfill this requirement, the Superintendent or designee may appoint a school wellness health council 
or other district committee, whose membership shall include representatives of these groups.  and a 
wellness council coordinator. The council may include representatives of the groups listed above, 
as well as He/she also may invite participation of other groups or individuals, such as health educators, 
curriculum directors, counselors, before- and after-school program staff, health practitioners, and/or 
others interested in school health issues. 
 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
(cf. 9140 - Board Representatives) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may make available to the public and school community a list of 
the names, position titles, and contact information of the wellness council members. 
 
The school health wellness council/committee shall advise the district on health-related issues, activities, 
policies, and programs. At the discretion of the Superintendent or designee, the duties of the 
council/committee may also include the planning, implementation, and evaluation of activities to 
promote health within the school or community. 
 
Goals for Nutrition, Physical Activity, and Other Wellness Activities 
 

Note:  42 USC 1758b and 7 CFR 210.30, as added by 81 Fed. Reg. 50151, mandates that the district's 
wellness policy include goals for the activities specified below. 

 
The Board shall adopt specific goals for nutrition promotion and education, physical activity, and other 
school-based activities that promote student wellness.  (42 USC 1758bIn developing such goals, the 
Board shall review and consider evidence-based strategies and techniques.  (42 USC 1758b; 7 CFR 
210.30) 
 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 



3 
 

 

(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
 

Note: The remainder of this section provides policy language to address this mandated topic and should be 
revised to reflect district practice. 

 
The district's physical education programs and any nutrition program shall be based on research, shall 
be consistent with the expectations established in the state's curriculum frameworks and content 
standards, and shall be designed to build the skills and knowledge that all students need to maintain a 
healthy lifestyle.  
 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 
(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 
 
Any nutrition education program shall include, but is not limited to, information about the benefits of 
healthy eating for learning, disease prevention, weight management, and oral health.  Nutrition education 
shall be provided as part of the health education program and, as appropriate, shall be integrated into 
other academic subjects in the regular educational program, summer learning programs, and school 
garden programs. 
 
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 
(cf. 6177 - Summer Learning Programs) 
 
To reinforce the district's nutrition education program, the Board prohibits the marketing and advertising 
of non-nutritious foods and beverages through signage, vending machine fronts, logos, scoreboards, 
school supplies, advertisements in school publications, coupon or incentive programs, free give-aways, 
or other means. 
 
All students shall be provided opportunities to be physically active on a regular basis. Opportunities for 
moderate to vigorous physical activity shall be provided through physical  
education and recess and may also be provided through school athletic programs, extracurricular 
programs, before- and after-school programs, summer learning programs, programs encouraging 
students to walk or bicycle to and from school, in-class physical activity breaks, and other structured and 
unstructured activities. 
 
(cf. 5142.2 - Safe Routes to School Program) 
(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 
 
The Board may enter into a joint use agreement or memorandum of understanding to make district 
facilities or grounds available for recreational or sports activities outside the school day and/or to use 
community facilities to expand students' access to opportunity for physical activity. 
 
(cf. 1330.1 - Joint Use Agreements) 
 
Professional development shall may be regularly offered to the nutrition program director, managers, 
and staff, as well as health education teachers, and physical education teachers, coaches, activity 
supervisors, food services staff, and other staff as appropriate to enhance their health knowledge and 
skills related to student health and wellness. 



4 
 

 

 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may disseminate health information and/or the district's student wellness 
policy to parents/guardians through district or school newsletters, handouts, parent/guardian meetings, 
district and school web sites, and other communications. Outreach to parents/guardians shall emphasize 
the relationship between student health and academic performance. 
 
In order to ensure that students have access to comprehensive health services, the district may provide 
access to health services at or near district schools and/or may provide referrals to community resources. 
 
The Board recognizes that a safe, positive school environment is also conducive to students' physical 
and mental health and thus prohibits bullying and harassment of all students, including bullying on the 
basis of weight or health condition. 
 
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall encourage staff to serve as positive role models for healthy eating 
and physical fitness.  He/she shall promote work-site wellness programs and may provide opportunities 
for regular physical activity among employees. 
 
Nutritional Guidelines for All Foods Available at School 
 

Note: 42 USC 1758b mandates that the district's wellness policy include nutritional guidelines that are 
consistent with federal nutrition standards, as specified below. Also see AR 3550 - Food Service/Child 
Nutrition Program. 

 
For all foods and beverages available on each campus during the school day, the district shall adopt 
USDAnutritional guidelines which are consistent with 42 USC 1758, 1766, 1773, and 1779 and federal 
regulations and which support the objectives of promoting student health and reducing childhood 
obesity.  (42 USC 1758b) 
 

Note: The remainder of this section provides policy language to address this mandated topic and should be 
revised to reflect district practice. 

 
In order to maximize the district's ability to provide nutritious meals and snacks, all district schools shall 
participate in available federal school nutrition programs, including the National School Lunch and 
School Breakfast Programs and after-school snack programs, to the extent possible. When approved by 
the California Department of Education, the district may sponsor a summer meal program. 
 
(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 
(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program) 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
(cf. 5141.27 - Food Allergies/Special Dietary Needs) 
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 
(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 
 



5 
 

 

Note:  Pursuant to 42 USC 1758, schools participating in the National School Lunch Program are required to 
make free drinking water available for consumption at locations where meals are served during meal service.  
In addition, Education Code 38086 requires all California schools to make free drinking water available during 
school meal times, unless the Board adopts a resolution demonstrating that the district is unable to comply due 
to fiscal constraints or health or safety concerns. See AR 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program for 
policy language related to these requirements. Also see CSBA's policy brief Increasing Access to Drinking 
Water in Schools for further information and sample strategies for providing water and encouraging 
consumption. Information on potential funding sources to comply with the potable water requirement is 
available on the CDE web site. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide access to free, potable water during meal times in the food 
service area during meal times in accordance with Education Code 38086 and 42  
USC 1758, and shall encourage students' consumption of water by educating them about the health 
benefits of water and by serving water in an appealing manner. 
 

Note: Pursuant to 7 CFR 210.30, as added by 81 Fed. Reg. 50151, districts are mandated to include, within the 
wellness policy, standards for all foods and beverages which are made available to students outside the district's 
food services program (e.g., sales through vending machines, student stores, and fundraisers). Nutrition standards 
and other requirements pertaining to such food sales outside the food services program (e.g., sales through vending 
machines, student stores, and fundraisers) are addressed in AR 3554 - Other Food Sales.  Pursuant to 42 USC 1758b, the 
USDA is required to establish nutrition standards for all foods sold and served in school at any time during the school 
day, although exemptions may be allowed for school-sponsored fundraisers if the fundraisers are approved by the school 
and are infrequent.  Districts will be required to implement the standards beginning one school year following the approval 
of the federal rule. 

 
The Board believes that all foods and beverages sold to students at district schools, including those 
available outside the district's reimbursable food services program, should support the health 
curriculum and promote optimal health. Nutritional standards adopted by the district for foods and 
beverages provided through student stores, vending machines, or other venues shall meet or exceed state 
and federal nutritional standards. 
 
(cf. 3312 - Contracts) 
(cf. 3554 - Other Food Sales) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall encourage school organizations to use healthy food items or non-
food items for fundraising purposes.  
 
He/she also shall encourage school staff to avoid the use of non-nutritious foods as a reward for students' 
academic performance, accomplishments, or classroom behavior. 
 
School staff shall encourage parents/guardians or other volunteers to support the district's nutrition 
education program by considering nutritional quality when selecting any snacks which they may donate 
for occasional class parties. Class parties or celebrations shall be held after the lunch period when 
possible. 
 

Note: Pursuant to 7 CFR 210.30, as added by 81 Fed. Reg. 50151, only those foods and beverages that are allowed 
for sale on campus during the school day may be marketed within the district. The Analysis of Comments to the 
federal regulations, 81 Fed. Reg. 50151 pg. 50159-50160, clarifies that this includes, but is not limited to, marketing 
by way of signage, vending machine exteriors, menu boards, coolers, trash cans, cups and scoreboards, but does 
not apply to materials for educational purposes. It also states that existing items do not need to be immediately 
replaced, but as new contracts are signed and/or durable equipment replaced, these guidelines should be followed. 

 



6 
 

 

To reinforce the district's nutrition education program, the Board prohibits the marketing and 
advertising of foods and beverages that do not meet nutrition standards for the sale of foods and 
beverages on campus during the school day.  (7 CFR 210.30) 
 
(cf. 1325 - Advertising and Promotion) 
 
Program Implementation and Evaluation 
 

Note: 42 USC 1758b and 7 CFR 210.30 require the district to identify an individual with the authority and 
responsibility to ensure that each district school complies with the wellness policy. The Analysis of Comments to 
the federal regulations, 81 Fed. Reg. 50151 pg. 50155, recommends that districts provide a means of contacting the 
designated individual by providing a district or school phone number and/or email address. 

 
The Superintendent shall designate Loyalton Elementary Site-Administrator, Loyalton High Site-
Administrator, and Downieville Lead Teacher, the individual(s) identified below, as the individual(s) 
responsible for ensuring one or more district or school employees, as appropriate, to ensure that each 
school site complies with this the district's wellness policy.  (42 USC 1758b; 7 CFR 210.30)  
 
Loyalton Elementary School Site Administrator 
530 993-4482 Ext 11 
awhite@spjusd.org 
 
Loyalton High School Site Administrator 
530 993 4454 Ext 202 
tjones@spjujsd.org 
 
Downieville School Lead Teacher 
530 289-3473 
rbolle@spjusd.org 
 
 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 
 

Note: 42 USC 1758b requires assessment of the implementation of the wellness policy but does not define any 
specific timeline. CSBA's publication Monitoring for Success: A Guide for Assessing and Strengthening 
Student Wellness Policies recommends that a report on the implementation of the wellness policy be provided 
to the Board at least once every two years. The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district 
practice. 42 USC 1758b and 7 CFR 210.30, as added by 81 Fed. Reg. 50151, require an assessment of the 
implementation and compliance of the wellness policy as specified in the paragraph below. At its 
discretion, the district may revise the following paragraph to reflect a more frequent schedule. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall periodically assess the implementation and effectiveness of this 
policy at least once every two three years. (42 USC 1758b; 7 CFR 210.30) 
 

Note:  42 USC 1758b requires that the district assessment include a comparison of the district's policy with 
model wellness policies. See the USDA's web site for model policies and best practices recommended by 
federal and state agencies and nongovernmental organizations. 

 
The assessment shall include the extent to which district schools are in compliance with this policy, the 

mailto:awhite@spjusd.org
mailto:tjones@spjujsd.org
mailto:rbolle@spjusd.org


7 
 

 

extent to which this policy compares to model wellness policies available from the U.S. Department of 
Agriculture, and a description of the progress made in attaining the goals of the wellness policy.  (42 
USC 1758b) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall invite feedback on district and school wellness activities from food 
service personnel, school administrators, the school health wellness council, parents/guardians, students, 
teachers, before- and after-school program staff, and/or other appropriate persons. 
 

Note:  Items #1-89 below are optional and may be revised to reflect district practice.  For further information 
about the following indicators and a list of other possible indicators, see CSBA's Monitoring for Success: A 
Guide for Assessing and Strengthening Student Wellness Policies. The guide also describes possible data 
sources that may be used for each indicator and includes a sample report format. Indicators selected by the 
district may include a mix of process measures (e.g., level of student participation, number of classes, staffing, 
and costs) as well as outcome measures that assess the policy's impact on students (e.g., physical fitness test 
results, Body Mass Index, and food choices). 

 
The Board and the Superintendent or designee shall establish indicators that will be used to measure the 
implementation and effectiveness of the district activities related to student wellness.  Such indicators 
may include, but are not limited to: 
 
1. Descriptions of the district's nutrition education, physical education, and health education 

curricula and the extent to which they align with state academic content standards and legal 
requirements 

 
2. An analysis of the nutritional content of school meals and snacks served in all district programs, 

based on a sample of menus and production records 
 
3. Student participation rates in all school meal and/or snack programs, including the number of 

students enrolled in the free and reduced-price meals program compared to the number of 
students eligible for that program 

 
4. Extent to which foods and beverages sold on campus outside the food services program, such 

as through vending machines, student stores, or fundraisers, comply with nutritional standards 
 
55.  Extent to which other foods and beverages that are available on campus during the school 

day, such as foods and beverages for classroom parties, school celebrations, and 
rewards/incentives, comply with nutrition standards 

 
5.6. Results of the state's physical fitness test at applicable grade levels 
 
6.7. Number of minutes of physical education offered at each grade span, and the estimated 

percentage of class time spent in moderate to vigorous physical activity 
 
7.8. A description of district efforts to provide additional opportunities for physical activity outside 

of the physical education program 
 
8.9. A description of other districtwide or school-based wellness activities offered, including the 

number of sites and/or students participating, as appropriate 
 



8 
 

 

The Superintendent or designee mayshall invite feedback on district and school wellness activities from 
food service personnel, school administrators, the school health council, parents/guardians, students, 
teachers, before- and after-school program staff, and/or other appropriate persons..[MOVED UP] 
 
As feasible, the assessment report may include a comparison of results across multiple years, a 
comparison of district data with county, statewide, or national data, and/or a comparison of wellness data 
with other student outcomes such as academic indicators or student discipline rates. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall inform and update the public, including parents/guardians, 
students, and others in the community, about the content and implementation of this policy and 
assessment results.  (42 USC 1758b))[MOVED TO "NOTIFICATIONS" SECTION] 
 

Note: In addition to the district self-assessment described above, 7 CFR 210. 18, as amended by 81 Fed. Reg. 50151, 
requires that the CDE conduct administrative reviews of all districts at least once every three years to ensure that 
districts are complying with their wellness policy. See section "Records" below for information about records that 
may be required for this assessment. The USDA's Food and Nutrition Service may grant a one-year extension to 
the CDE's three-year review cycle if needed for efficient state management of the program. 

 
In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall prepare and maintain the proper documentation 
and records needed for the administrative review of the district's wellness policy conducted by the 
California Department of Education (CDE) every three years.  
 
The assessment results of both the district and state evaluations shall be submitted to the Board for 
the purposes of evaluating policy and practice, recognizing accomplishments, and making policy 
adjustments as needed to focus district resources and efforts on actions that are most likely to make a 
positive impact on student health and achievement. 
 
Posting Requirements 
 
Each school shall post the district's policies and regulations on nutrition and physical activity in public 
view within all school cafeterias or in other central eating areas.  (Education Code 49432) 
 
Notifications 
 

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 49432, as amended by SB 1169 (Ch. 280, Statutes of 2016), 42 USC 1758b, and 
7 CFR 210.30, as added by 81 Fed. Reg. 50151, the district is required to inform the public of the content and 
implementation of the wellness policy and the district's progress towards meeting the goals of the policy, as 
described below.   

 
The Superintendent or designee shall inform the public about the content and implementation of 
the district's wellness policy and shall make the policy, and any updates to the policy, available the 
public on an annual basis. He/she shall also inform the public of the district's progress towards 
meeting the goals of the wellness policy, including the availability of the triennial district 
assessment.  (Education Code 49432; 42 USC 1758b; 7 CFR 210.30) 
 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may disseminate health information and/or the district's student wellness 
policy to parents/guardians through shall distribute this information through the district and school 
web sites. Outreach to parents/guardians shall emphasize the relationship between student health and 



9 
 

 

wellness and academic performance.  
 
(cf. 1100 - Communication with the Public) 
(cf. 1112 - Media Relations) 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 
Each school mayshall also may post a summary of nutrition and physical activity laws and regulations 
prepared by the California Department of Education CDE. 
 
Records 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall retain records that document compliance with 7 CFR 210.30, 
including, but not limited to, the written student wellness policy, documentation of the triennial 
assessment of the wellness policy for each school site, and documentation demonstrating 
compliance with the community involvement requirements, including requirements to make the 
policy and assessment results available to the public. (7 CFR 210.30) 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
33350-33354  CDE responsibilities re: physical education 
38086  Free fresh drinking water 
49430-4943649434  Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001 
49490-49494  School breakfast and lunch programs 
49500-49505  School meals 
49510-49520  Nutrition 
49530-49536  Child Nutrition Act 
49540-49546  Child care food program 
49547-49548.3  Comprehensive nutrition services 
49550-49561 495612 Meals for needy students 
49565-49565.8  California Fresh Start pilot program 
49570  National School Lunch Act 
51210  Course of study, grades 1-6 
51210.1-51210.2  Physical education, grades 1-6 
51210.4  Nutrition education 
51220  Course of study, grades 7-12 
51222 Physical education 
51223  Physical education, elementary schools 
51795-51796.558  School instructional gardens 
51880-51921  Comprehensive health education 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
15500-15501  Food sales by student organizations 
15510  Mandatory meals for needy students 
15530-15535  Nutrition education 
15550-15565  School lunch and breakfast programs 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
1751-17691769j  National School Lunch Program, especially: 
1758b Local wellness policy 
1771-179117913  Child Nutrition Act, especially: 
1773  School Breakfast Program 
1779  Rules and regulations, Child Nutrition Act 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 
210.1-210.31313  National School Lunch Program, especially: 
210.30  Wellness policy 
220.1-220.2322  National School Breakfast Program 
COURT DECISIONS 
Frazer v. Dixon Unified School District, (1993) 18 Cal.App.4th 781 

 
 



10 
 

 

Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Integrating Physical Activity into the School Day, Governance Brief, April 2016 
Increasing Access to Drinking Water in Schools, Policy Brief, MarchMarchApril 2013 
Monitoring for Success: A Guide for Assessing and Strengthening Student Wellness Policies, rev. 2012 
Nutrition Standards for Schools: Implications for Student Wellness, Policy Brief, rev. April 2012 
Student Wellness: A Healthy Food and Physical Activity Policy Resource Guide, rev. 2012 
Physical Activity and Physical Education in California Schools, Research Brief, April 2010 
Building Healthy Communities: A School Leader's Guide to Collaboration and Community Engagement, 2009 ) 
Safe Routes to School: Program and Policy Strategies for School Districts, Policy Brief, 2009 
Physical Education and California Schools, Policy Brief, rev. October 2007 
School-Based Marketing of Foods and Beverages: Policy Implications for School Boards, Policy Brief, March 2006 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Physical Education Framework for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve, 2009 
Health Framework for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve, 2003 
CALIFORNIA PROJECT LEAN PUBLICATIONS 
Policy in Action: A Guide to Implementing Your Local School Wellness Policy, October 2006 
CENTER FOR COLLABORATIVE SOLUTIONS 
Changing Lives, Saving Lives: A Step-by-Step Guide to Developing Exemplary Practices in Healthy Eating, Physical Activity 
and Food Security in Afterschool Programs, March 2010 January 2015 
CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION PUBLICATIONS 
School Health Index for Physical Activity and Healthy Eating: A Self-Assessment and Planning Guide, 2005 rev. 2012 
FEDERAL REGISTER 
Rules and Regulations, January 26, 2012, Vol. 77, Number 17, pages 4088-4167 July 29, 2016, Vol. 81, Number 146, pages 
50151-50170 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF STATE BOARDS OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Fit, Healthy and Ready to Learn, 2000 rev. 2012 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS 
Dietary Guidelines for Americans, 2005 2016 
Changing the Scene, Improving the School Nutrition Environment: A Guide to Local Action, 2000 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
Action for Healthy Kids: http://www.actionforhealthykids.org 
Alliance for a Healthier Generation: http://www.healthiergeneration.org 
California Department of Education, Nutrition Services Division: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu 
California Department of Public Health: http://www.cdph.ca.gov 
California Healthy Kids Resource Center: http://www.californiahealthykids.org 
California Project LEAN (Leaders Encouraging Activity and Nutrition): http://www.californiaprojectlean.org 
California School Nutrition Association: http://www.calsna.org 
Center for Collaborative Solutions: http://www.ccscenter.org 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention: http://www.cdc.gov 
Dairy Council of California: http://www.dairycouncilofca.org 
National Alliance for Nutrition and Activity: http://www.cspinet.org/nutritionpolicy/nana.html 
National Association of State Boards of Education: http://www.nasbe.org 
School Nutrition Association: http://www.schoolnutrition.org 
Society for Nutrition Education: http://www.sne.org 
U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food Nutrition Service, wellness policy: 
http://www.fns.usda.gov/tn/Healthy/wellnesspolicy.html 
U.S. Department of Agriculture, Healthy Meals Resource System: http://healthymeals.fns.usda.gov 
 

Policy SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
adopted:  April 10, 2007 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
revised:  June 19, 2013 Sierraville, California 
revised:  May 10, 2016 Loyalton, California 
revised:  January 10, 2017 
 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 
Copyright 2016 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 
All rights reserved. 
 

http://healthymeals.fns.usda.gov/


1 
 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
 
Students AR 5111.1 
 
DISTRICT RESIDENCY 
 
Criteria for Residency 
 
A student shall be deemed to have complied with district residency requirements for enrollment in 
a district school if he/she meets any of the following criteria: 
 
1. The student's parent/guardian resides within district boundaries. (Education Code 48200) 
 
2. The student is placed within district boundaries in a regularly established licensed 

children's institution, a licensed foster home, or a family home pursuant to a court-ordered 
commitment or placement.  (Education Code 48204) 

 
Note: State law provides a number of options under which a student may attend school in a district other than the 
district where he/she resides. For instance, a student attending a school identified as low achieving on the state's 
Open Enrollment List may transfer to a school in any other district in the state subject to certain conditions, 
pursuant to Education Code 48350-48361; see BP/AR 5118 - Open Enrollment Act Transfer.  If the district chooses 
to enter into an interdistrict attendance agreement pursuant to Education Code 46600-46611, a student may request 
a permit to attend school in a different district when both the district of residence and the district of proposed 
attendance have agreed to allow interdistrict attendance. If the Governing Board has declared the district to be a 
"school district of choice" pursuant to Education Code 48300-48316, the district may accept a specific number of 
interdistrict transfers into the district through a random, unbiased selection process. See BP/AR 5117 - Interdistrict 
Attendance for further information about these options.  Pursuant to Education Code 48204, 48301, and 48356, 
students admitted under any of these options are deemed to have met district residency requirements. The district 
should revise item #3 as appropriate to reflect options provided by the district. 

 
3. The student has been is admitted through an interdistrict attendance option., such as an 

interdistrict attendance agreement, "school district of choice" transfer, or Open Enrollment 
Act transfer.  (Education Code 46600, 48204, 48301, 48356) 

 
(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance) 
(cf. 5118 - Open Enrollment Act Transfers) 
 
4. The student is an emancipated minor residing within district boundaries.  (Education Code 

48204) 
 
5. The student lives with a caregiving adult within district boundaries. and the caregiving 

adult submits an affidavit to that effect.  (Education Code 48204) 
 
6. The student resides in a state hospital located within district boundaries.  (Education Code 

48204) 
 



2 
 

7. The student is confined to a hospital or other residential health facility within district 
boundaries for treatment of a temporary disability.  (Education Code 48204, 48207) 

 
(cf. 6183 - Home and Hospital Instruction) 
 
8. The student's parent/guardian resides outside district boundaries but is employed within 

district boundaries and lives with the student at the place of employment for a minimum of 
three days during the school week.  (Education Code 48204) 

 
Note: Pursuant to Education Code 48204.3, as added by SB 1455 (Ch. 312, Statutes of 2016), a student will 
be deemed to meet district residency requirements if his/her parent/guardian is transferred or is pending 
transfer to a military installation (i.e., a base, camp, post, station, yard, center, homeport facility for any 
ship, or other activity under the jurisdiction of the Department of Defense or the U.S. Coast Guard) within 
district boundaries. 

 
9. The student's parent/guardian, while on active military duty pursuant to an official 

military order, is transferred or is pending transfer to a military installation within 
district boundaries.  (Education Code 48204.3) 

 
(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 
 
Residency Based on Parent/Guardian Employment (Allen Bill Transfers) 
 

Note: The following section is optional. Education Code 48204 permits, but does not require, districts to admit a 
student whose parent/guardian is employed within district boundaries for a minimum of 10 hours during the school 
week (so-called "Allen bill transfers").  If the district chooses to grant residency status to such students, it may 
nevertheless deny enrollment to students under the circumstances identified in items #1-3 below. AB 2537 (Ch. 
106, Statutes of 2016) amended Education Code 48204 to indefinitely extend the district's authority to grant 
residency under these circumstances. 

 
District residency status may be granted to a student if at least one of his/her parents/guardians is 
physically employed within district boundaries for a minimum of 10 hours during the school week. 
No student seeking residency on this basis shall be denied enrollment based on race, ethnicity, sex, 
parental income, scholastic achievement, or any of the individual characteristics set forth in 
Education Code 220. However, the Superintendent or designee may deny enrollment into the 
district if any of the following circumstances is present:  (Education Code 48204) 
 
1. The additional cost of educating the student would exceed the amount of additional state 

aid received as a result of the transfer. 
 
2. Enrollment of the student would adversely affect the district's court-ordered or voluntary 

desegregation plan as determined by the Governing Board. 
 
3. Other circumstances exist that are not arbitrary. 
 

Note: The following paragraph is optional. In 84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 198 (2001), the Attorney General opined that 
overcrowding is not an "arbitrary consideration" within the meaning of Education Code 48204.  Therefore, a 
district may deny an application when the district's school facilities are overcrowded at the relevant grade level. 
The Attorney General also clarified that, once a student is admitted, he/she must be allowed to continue to attend 



3 
 

school in the district through the highest grade level offered by the district, even if the school subsequently becomes 
overcrowded at the relevant grade level. Although Attorney General opinions are not binding on the courts, they 
are generally afforded deference when there is no specific statutory or case law to the contrary.  The following 
paragraph is based on this Attorney General opinion. 

 
Such circumstances may include, but are not limited to, overcrowding of school facilities 
at the relevant grade level. 

 
Once a student establishes residency on this basis, he/she shall not be required to reapply for 
enrollment in subsequent years. The student may continue to attend school in the district through 
the highest grade level offered by the district if the parent/guardian so chooses and if at least one 
parent/guardian of the student continues to be physically employed by an employer situated within 
district boundaries, subject to the exceptions in items #1-3 above. (Education Code 48204) 
 

Note: Education Code 48204 prescribes limits on the number of net Allen bill transfers out of the district (the 
difference between the number of students entering and exiting the district) that a district may allow each fiscal 
year, unless waived by the sending district. The limits are based on the average daily attendance (ADA) of the 
district, as follows: five percent of ADA for districts with 500 or less ADA; three percent of ADA or 25 students, 
whichever is greater, for districts with an ADA of 501-2,500; and one percent of ADA or 75 students, whichever 
is greater, for districts with an ADA of 2,501 or more.  The following paragraph may be modified to specify the 
percentage that applies to the district's ADA. 
 
Even if the district has not authorized Allen bill transfers into the district, Education Code 48204 provides that the 
district may disallow transfers out of the district, within the specified limits, by students whose parent/guardian is 
employed within the boundaries of another district. 

 
The Superintendent or designee may deny a transfer out of the district by a student whose 
parent/guardian is employed within the boundaries of another district if the difference between the 
number of students entering and exiting the district on the basis of parent/guardian employment 
exceeds the limits prescribed in Education Code 48204.  (Education Code 48204) 
 
Proof of Residency 
In addition, district residency status may be granted to a student if at least one parent/guardian is 

physically employed within district boundaries.  (Education Code 48204) 
 
(cf. 5111.12 - Residency Based on Parent/Guardian Employment) 
 
District residency is not required for enrollment in a regional occupational center or program if 
there are openings in the program or class.  (Education Code 52317) 
 
(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 
 
The district may admit a nonresident student living in an adjoining state or foreign country in 
accordance with Education Code 48050-48052. 
 
(cf. 5111.2 - Nonresident Foreign Students) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall annually notify parents/guardians of all existing attendance 
options available in the district, including, but not limited to, all options for meeting residency 



4 
 

requirements for school attendance. (Education Code 48980) 
 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
Proof of Residency 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall annually verify each student's district residency status and 
retain a copy of the document or written statement offered as verification in the student's 
mandatory permanent record.  (5 CCR 432) 
 
(cf. 5111 - Admission) 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
 
Evidence of residency may be established by documentation showing the name and address of the 
parent/guardian within the district, including, but not limited to, any of the following: (Education 
Code 48204.1) 
 
1. Property tax payment receipt 
 
2. Rental property contract, lease, or payment receipt 
 
3. Utility service contract, statement, or payment receipt 
 
4. Pay stub 
 
5. Voter registration 
 
6. Correspondence from a government agency 
 
7. Declaration of residency executed by the student's parent/guardian 
 
8. If the student is an unaccompanied youth as defined in 42 USC 11434a, a declaration of 

residency executed by the student 
 

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 48204, a student shall be deemed a resident of the district if he/she lives with a 
caregiving adult within district boundaries; see item #5 in section "Criteria for Residency" above. Family Code 
6552 provides an affidavit which authorizes a caregiver 18 years of age or older to enroll a minor in school and 
requires the caregiver's attestation that the student lives with the caregiver. If the student stops living with the 
caregiver, Family Code 6550 requires the caregiver to so notify the school. 

 
9. If the student is residing in the home of a caregiving adult within district boundaries, an 

affidavit executed by the caregiving adult in accordance with Family Code 6552 
 
(cf. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies) 
 
A parent/guardian seeking residency status on the basis of his/her employment within district 
boundaries shall submit proof of the employment which may include, but not be limited to, a 



5 
 

paycheck stub or letter from his/her employer listing a physical address within district boundaries. 
Such evidence shall also indicate the number of hours or days per school week that the 
parent/guardian is employed at that location. 
 

Note: The following paragraph is for use by districts in which there is a military installation within district 
boundaries. Pursuant to Education Code 48204.3, as added by SB 1455 (Ch. 312, Statutes of 
2016), a parent/guardian who is seeking residency status based on his/her transfer or pending transfer to a 
military installation within district boundaries may provide any of the following types of proof of residence. 

 
A parent/guardian who is transferred or pending transfer into a military installation within 
district boundaries shall provide proof of residence within 10 days after the published arrival 
date provided on official documentation. For this purpose, he/she may use as his/her address 
a temporary on-base billeting facility, a purchased or leased home or apartment, or federal 
government or public-private venture off-base military housing.  (Education Code 48204.3) 
 

Note:  Federal and state law require the immediate enrollment of homeless youth (Education Code 48852.7; 42 
USC 11432), and foster youth (Education Code 48853.5), or student who has had contact with the juvenile 
justice system (Education Code 48645.5), regardless of their his/her ability to provide the school with records 
normally required for enrollment, including proof of residency. If a dispute arises over the enrollment of a homeless 
or foster youth, the student must be allowed to attend school while the district liaison conducts a dispute resolution 
process.  See BP/AR/E 6173 - Education for Homeless Children and AR 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth. 
 
The California Department of Education's web site provides sample forms to obtain a declaration and affidavit 
from the parent/guardian or other qualified adult relative of a homeless child attesting that the family does not have 
a fixed, regular, adequate nighttime residence and indicating the current location where the family lives. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall make a reasonable effort to secure evidence that a homeless 
or foster youth resides within the district, including, but not limited to, a utility bill, letter from a 
homeless shelter, hotel/motel receipt, or affidavit from the student's parent/guardian or other 
qualified adult relative. 
 
However, Any homeless or foster youth or student who has had contact with the juvenile 
justice system shall not be required immediately enrolled in school even if he/she is unable to 
provide proof of residency as a condition of enrollment in district schools.  (Education Code 
48645.5, 48852.7, 48853.5; 42 USC 11432) 
 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students) 
 
Failure to Verify Residency 
 
When the Superintendent or designee reasonably believes that a student's 
 
A parent/guardian has provided false or unreliable evidence of seeking residency, he/she may 
make reasonable efforts to determine that  status on the student meets basis of his/her employment 
within district residency requirements. (Education Code 48204.1) 
 



6 
 

If the Superintendent or designee, upon investigation, determines that a student's enrollment or 
attempted enrollment is based on false or unreliable evidence of residency, he/sheboundaries shall 
deny or revoke the student's enrollment.  Before any such denial or revocation is final, submit 
proof of the employment which may include, but not be limited to, a paycheck stub or letter from 
his/her employer listing a physical address within district boundaries. Such evidence shall also 
indicate the number of hours or days per school week that the parent/guardian shall be sent written 
notice of the facts leading to the decision. This notice also shall inform the parent/guardian that 
he/she may provide new material evidence of residency, in writing, to the Superintendent or 
designee within 10 school days. The Superintendent or designee shall review any new evidence 
and make a final decision within 10 school days.is employed at that location.[MOVED UP] 
 
Safe at Home/Confidential Address Program 
 

Note: Government Code 6205-6210 authorize the Secretary of State to provide victims of domestic violence, 
stalking, or sexual assault with a substitute address to use in place of their residence, work, or school address in 
all public records.  Under this program, the Secretary of State receives any mail sent to the substitute address and 
forwards it to the program participant's confidential address. Pursuant to Government Code 6207, the district must 
accept and use the substitute address designated by the Secretary of State as a participant's substitute address for 
all communication and correspondence with program participants. The participant will present a laminated 
identification card containing his/her substitute address and a four-digit authorization number. The district may 
verify the enrollment of a student in the program by contacting the Safe At Home program. 
 
Program participants have been advised by the Secretary of State to provide administrators with their actual 
residence location only for school emergency purposes and to establish residency within the district. 

 
When a student or parent/guardian participating in the Safe at Home program requests that the 
district use the substitute address designated by the Secretary of State, the Superintendent or 
designee may request the actual residence address for the purpose of establishing residency within 
district boundaries but shall use the substitute address for all future communications and 
correspondence and shall not include the actual address in the student's file or any other public 
record. The Superintendent or designee may request the actual residence address for the purpose 
of establishing residency within district boundaries. (Government Code 6206, 6207) 
 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
 
 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
approved:   April 10, 2007  Sierraville, California 
revised:   April 12, 2012 
revised:  January 10, 2017 Loyalton, California 
 
 
Copyright 2016 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 
All rights reserved. 
Policy Reference: UPDATE Service 
 
 



NEW 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
 
Students BP 5116.2(a) 
 
INVOLUNTARY STUDENT TRANSFERS 
 
The Governing Board desires to enroll students in the school of their choice, but recognizes that 
circumstances sometimes necessitate the involuntary transfer of some students to another school or 
program in the district. The Superintendent or designee shall develop procedures to facilitate the 
transition of such students into their new school of enrollment. 
 
(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 
(cf. 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment) 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 
(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students) 
 
As applicable, when determining the best placement for a student who is subject to involuntary transfer, 
the Superintendent or designee shall review all educational options for which the student is eligible, the 
student's academic progress and needs, the enrollment capacity at district schools, and the availability of 
support services and other resources. 
 
Whenever a student is involuntarily transferred, the Superintendent or designee shall provide timely 
written notification to the student and his/her parent/guardian and an opportunity for the student and 
parent/guardian to meet with the Superintendent or designee to discuss the transfer. 
 
Students Convicted of Violent Felony or Misdemeanor 
 

Note: Education Code 48929, as added by SB 1343 (Ch. 154, Statutes of 2016), authorizes a district to involuntarily 
transfer a student who has been convicted of a violent felony as defined in Penal Code 667.5(c) (including, but not limited 
to, attempted murder, rape, assault, kidnapping, and robbery) or a misdemeanor associated with possession of a firearm 
as specified in Penal Code 29805, whenever the student is enrolled at the same school as a student who was a victim of 
the crime.  
In order to exercise this authority, Education Code 48929 mandates the Governing Board to adopt, at a regularly 
scheduled meeting, policy that contains the following provisions: (1) a requirement that the student and his/her 
parent/guardian be notified of the right to request a meeting with the principal or designee; (2) a requirement that the 
school first attempt to resolve the conflict using restorative justice, counseling, or other services; (3) whether the decision 
to transfer a student is subject to periodic review and the procedure for conducting the review; and (4) the process to be 
used by the Board to consider and approve or disapprove the recommendation of the principal or designee to transfer the 
student. Education Code 48929 also requires the district to provide notice of the policy to parents/guardians as part of the 
annual parental notification required by Education Code 48980. 

 
A student may be transferred to another district school if he/she is convicted of a violent felony, as 
defined in Penal Code 667.5(c), or a misdemeanor listed in Penal Code 29805 and is enrolled at the same 
school as the victim of the crime for which he/she was convicted.  (Education Code 48929) 
 
Before transferring such a student, the Superintendent or designee shall attempt to resolve the conflict 
using restorative justice, counseling, or other such services. He/she shall also notify the student and 
his/her parents/guardians of the right to request a meeting with the principal or designee.  (Education 
Code 48929) 



2 
 
(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation) 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance and Counseling Services) 
 
Participation of the victim in any conflict resolution program shall be voluntary, and he/she shall not be 
subjected to any disciplinary action for his/her refusal to participate in conflict resolution. 
 

Education Code 48929 mandates that the Board adopt policy describing the process to be used by the Board to consider 
and take action on the recommendation to transfer a student under this law, but does not prescribe any such process. 
Education Code 35146 provides that the Board must meet in closed session to address any student matter that may involve 
disclosure of confidential student information, or to consider a suspension, disciplinary action, or any other action against 
a student except expulsion. If a written request for open session is received from the parent/guardian or adult student, it 
will be honored to the extent that it does not violate the privacy rights of any other student. See BB 9321 - Closed Session 
Purposes and Agendas. 

 
The principal or designee shall submit to the Superintendent or designee a recommendation as to whether 
or not the student should be transferred. If the Superintendent or designee determines that a transfer 
would be in the best interest of the students involved, he/she shall submit such recommendation to the 
Board for approval.  
 
The Board shall deliberate in closed session to maintain the confidentiality of student information, unless 
the parent/guardian or adult student submits a written request that the matter be addressed in open session 
and doing so would not violate the privacy rights of any other student.  The Board's decision shall be 
final. 
 
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 
 
The decision to transfer a student shall be subject to periodic review by the Superintendent or designee.  
 
The Superintendent or designee shall annually notify parents/guardians of the district's policy 
authorizing the transfer of a student pursuant to Education Code 48929. (Education Code 48980) 
 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
Other Involuntary Transfers 
 
Students may be involuntarily transferred under either of the following circumstances: 
 

Note: Item #1 below is for use by districts that maintain high schools. Education Code 48432 requires such districts to 
establish and maintain continuation education schools or classes whenever there are any students residing in the district 
who are subject to compulsory continuation education.  Pursuant to Education Code 48432.5, districts that assign students 
to continuation schools are mandated to adopt rules and regulations governing procedures for involuntary transfer of 
students to continuation schools. See BP/AR 6184 - Continuation Education for language fulfilling this mandate. 

 
1. If a high school student commits an act enumerated in Education Code 48900 or is habitually 

truant or irregular in school attendance, he/she may be transferred to a continuation school.  
(Education Code 48432.5) 

 
 (cf. 6184 - Continuation Education) 
 



3 
Note: Education Code 48660-48666 authorize districts to establish community day schools for expelled students, certain 
probation-referred students pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code 300 or 602, and students referred by a school 
attendance review board or through another formal district process. Pursuant to Education Code 48662, districts 
establishing a community day school are mandated to adopt policy that provides procedures for the involuntary transfer 
of students to the school. See BP/AR 6185 - Community Day Schools for language fulfilling this mandate. 

 
2. If a student is expelled from school for any reason, is probation-referred pursuant to Welfare and 

Institutions Code 300 or 602, or is referred by a school attendance review board or another formal 
district process, he/she may be transferred to a community day school.  (Education Code 48662) 

 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6185 - Community Day School) 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
35146  Closed sessions; student matters 
48430-48438  Continuation classes, especially: 
48432.5   Involuntary transfer to continuation school 
48660-48666  Community day schools, especially: 
48662  Involuntary transfer to community day school 
48900  Grounds for suspension and expulsion 
48929  Transfer of student convicted of violent felony or misdemeanor 
48980  Notice at beginning of term 
PENAL CODE 
667.5  Violent felony, definition 
29805  Misdemeanors involving firearms 
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 
300  Minors subject to jurisdiction 
602  Minors violating laws defining crime; ward of court 

 
Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
approved:   January 10, 2017 Loyalton, California 
 
 
 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 
Copyright 2016 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 
All rights reserved. 
 


	1_01_10_2017_SCOE_AGENDA
	2_TheSSF_Presentation
	Past, Present and Future: A brief update on our impact over the past 5 years, current grants and our promising future.
	Taking Stock
	Current Awarded Grants for Winter 2016
	Moving Forward

	3_Account Summary_12_16
	4_12_13_16_SCOE_MINUTES
	5_Board Report 12_2016
	5_Excerpt from 9230
	7_SCOE Business Mgr No 214
	8_2015-2016_School_Accountability_Report_Card_Input_Form_(CDE)_Sierra_County_Office_of_Education_20161220
	10_PolicyRevisions
	1340AR_Access to DistRecords_Red-NoNotes
	3543 AR_Trans_Red
	3550 AR_FoodServ_ChildNutri_Red
	4030 BP_NonDiscEmploy_Red
	4030 AR Nondis_Employment_Red
	4119.11 BP_S. Harass_Red
	4119.11 AR_S. Harass_Red
	5030 BP_Student wellness_Red
	5111.1 AR_Dist Residency_Red
	5116.2 BP_Invol Student Transfers_NEW


